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VISION
To be the recognised statutory professional body for the development, regula�on and 

promo�on of finance and governance prac��oners in the public sector.

MISSION
Se�ng and maintaining professional prac�ce standards of public finance 

management within the statutory framework, as well as monitoring and controlling 
compliance to the standards to benefit the public.

OBJECTIVES
• To establish CIGFARO to be a recognised statutory professional body

• To represent and promote the interest in Public Financial Management
• To regulate the registra�on and con�nuous professional development of members

THE MEANING
Our organisa�on has revised it’s 
iden�ty to ensure we remain 
recognisable and most importantly, 
to promote what we do under one
name. It’s structure incorporates a
gold eclipse, a universal symbol 
represen�ng unity, wholeness and
infinity of all our en��es. 
The talbot remains our key focus 
ensuring the transi�on is subtle, 
yet s�ll recognisable.

OUR LOGO
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FOREWORD BY THE PRESIDENT

INTRODUCTION
It gives me great pleasure to present my report for the 2019/2020 year. 
I will briefly highlight some of the key issues pertaining to CIGFARO in 
the period under review and against the backdrop of current affairs in 
the public sector in general. In this calendar year, we have endured a 
pandemic which has impacted on the economy locally and interna�on-
ally to such an extent that it has forced many companies, including 
CIGFARO, to pause any face-to-face mee�ng and Conference. This had 
a direct impact on the revenue stream of CIGFARO.

FINANCES
The finances of the Ins�tute remained sound for the financial year 
ending 31 March 2020. However, with the total lockdown of the 
economy under the state of disaster declared by the State President on 
23 March 2020, the whole economy took a downturn and it has 
nega�vely impacted on the finances of CIGFARO. There was a net 
surplus of R2.6 million at financial year end, which is R1.3 million more 
than the previous financial year. This is mainly due to increased income 
from conferences and CPD services. Opera�ng expenses at year-end 
was R180 364 more than the expenses realised in the previous finan-
cial year. The Ins�tute managed to increase the value of its total assets 
to R37.2 million. The Ins�tute’s membership in the public sector and 
revenue increased by R108 314 over the financial year. However, it is 
s�ll low as the poten�al membership in the public sector is more than 
100 000 employees. The board will con�nue to monitor the finances of 
the Ins�tute closely to ensure its on-going financial viability and 
sustainability.

FINANCIAL AND OTHER RISKS
The board has previously iden�fied a dependency on conference 
income as a risk for CIGFARO. This risk has turned into reality with the 
lockdown of the economy, when a state of na�onal disaster was 
declared by the State President on 23 March 2020. The reason for 
this disaster is the Covid-19 pandemic that spread across the world. 
We have to operate amid this na�onal disaster, with the economy in 
a recession and the implementa�on of austerity measures across the 
public sector and government impac�ng nega�vely on our revenue 
streams. All of these factors posed a serious threat to the financial 
sustainability of the Ins�tute. Certain internal measurements were 
taken to mi�gate the impact, such as the adjustment of the current 
year’s budget downwards, reduc�on of staff salaries by an average of 
4%. The Ins�tute introduced webinars to a wide range of audiences 
with relevant topics to address the loss in revenue and create a more 
sustainable form of revenue outside formal face-to-face conferences. 
These webinars are more prac�ce-directed and mainly aimed at 
assis�ng prac��oners in their day-to-day work and offer CPD points.

SINGLE PROFESSIONAL BODY
Much effort has been put into the crea�on of a single professional 
body. Engagements with Na�onal Treasury and the Department of 
Coopera�ve Governance and Tradi�onal Affairs (CoGTA) took place 
during the financial year, with further follow-up mee�ngs scheduled 
with the two ministries. These include physical mee�ngs with the 
Minister of COGTA, Deputy Minister of Finance and follow-up le�ers 
on the implementa�on of crea�ng a Statutory Body for Public Sector 
Officials. Further engagements to achieve this goal and vision include 
mee�ngs with ILGM and Professor O Fuo of the North West Universi-
ty, who was tasked by SALGA to look into the professionalisa�on of 
SCM prac��oners. The purpose is to require public prac��oners to 
register for their trade and maintain a high profile of ethics in 
performing their du�es as public servants.  CIGFARO’s vision is to play 
a significant role to achieve this as the only role player in the overall 
financial management in the public sector. Members will be kept up 
to date on progress with this ma�er.

CODE OF ETHICS
South Africa is currently in the world news for its judicial commission 
of inquiry into allega�ons of state capture, headed by deputy chief 
jus�ce Raymond Zondo, which will also look into corrup�on and 
fraud in the public sector. This inquiry and its work have highlighted 
the extent of fraud and corrup�on in the public sector. The Auditor 
General, in his overview report on the finances of the public sector, 
again highlighted the concerns about increased irregular expendi-
ture, increase in fraud and corrup�on and the lack of consequence 
management. There is a need to bring all public servants back to 
ethical behaviour and leadership and this is where CIGFARO has to 
play a significant role through a single professional body. 
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The revela�ons at the inquiry have impacted nega�vely on the 
image and reputa�on of the public sector and especially its finan-
cial, audi�ng and risk professions. It is also concerning that, while 
some of these professions are at the core of the unravelled fraud 
and corrup�on, the internal audit profession is not providing 
evidence of what could be regarded as the most complex fraud that 
was commi�ed in South African history. Accordingly, the Ins�tute 
will focus on ethics and have produced an enhanced Code of Ethics 
and Conduct. All members have to abide by the Code and there will 
be a zero-tolerance approach towards any transgressions. 

MEMBERSHIP
We currently have 1277 members and our membership is growing 
at a very slow pace. During the previous financial year, the Ins�tute 
resumed the Migra�on Campaign, where members migrated to the 
new Professional Designa�ons. To remain relevant and add value to 
CIGFARO membership, the Ins�tute was required by the South 
African Qualifica�ons Authority (SAQA) to register the professional 
designa�ons on the Na�onal Qualifica�ons Framework (NQF). The 
process has seen a steep decline of 41.47% members. The Ins�tute 
has helped to provide a professional “home” for people who iden�-
fy with the profession and help them engage with those who feel 
part of the same iden�fica�on. The decline in members has given 
the Ins�tute an opportunity to keep the membership database up 
to date and look into qualita�ve data analysis to help with the 
membership drive. There is a concerted drive to increase member-
ship through marke�ng at key events, such as the annual confer-
ence, provincial branch ac�vi�es, seminars and indabas, as well as 
the journal, newsle�er and website. 
We would like to encourage all public finance management profes-
sionals to join CIGFARO. We also urge all exis�ng members to 
promote CIGFARO to all poten�al new members.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
We received an unqualified audit report. The annual financial state-
ments were �meously completed and submi�ed to the external 
auditors. The Ins�tute con�nues to comply with the Companies Act 
in terms of professional prac�ce and good governance. All policies 
are also reviewed regularly to ensure relevance and improve 
compliance.
THE BOARD
Mee�ngs were held quarterly, with sa�sfactory a�endance. 
Individual performance plans for board members were also 
reviewed.

STANDING COMMITTEES
Audit and Risk Commi�ee
The Audit and Risk Commi�ee played an important oversight role in 
terms of the annual financial statements, compliance with the 
Companies Act, appointment of the external auditor, IT governance 
issues, review of internal controls to minimize fraud and corrup�on 
and upda�ng the risk register and mi�ga�on strategies, as well as 
any changes in respect of policies and prac�ces.

Social and Ethics Standing Commi�ee
The Standing Commi�ee on Social and Ethics has improved compli-
ance and alignment with the Companies Act. 

Standing Commi�ee on Professional Conduct and 
Quality Assurance
The Standing Commi�ee on Professional Conduct and Quality Assur-
ance focused on providing the professional development of mem-
bers. This included the review of all membership levels, professional-
ising financial 
management and canvassing new members, as well as training.

Standing Commi�ee on Remunera�on and
Nomina�on
The Standing Commi�ee on Remunera�on and Nomina�on led the 
performance management, risk management, staff placement and 
policy review processes.

Standing Commi�ee on Budget and Finance
The Standing Commi�ee on Budget and Finance closely monitored 
debt collec�on, project spends, cash flow and actual versus budget 
variances. It also reviewed the proposed budget and financial results 
for the year, as well as all financial risks.

Standing Commi�ee on Communica�on and
Marke�ng
The Standing Commi�ee on Communica�on and Marke�ng was 
responsible for all marke�ng, conference func�ons and events. The 
Commi�ee also managed the CIGFARO journal and circulated 2500 
copies, 1000 less than the previous year, due to financial constraints. 
In line with CIGFARO’s austerity measures, travelling and a�ending 
external stakeholder events were reduced.

Standing Commi�ee on Knowledge and 
Development
The Standing Commi�ee on Knowledge and Development undertook 
several educa�on and training programmes, such as Municipal 
Standard Chart of Accounts (mSCOA) budget training and Generally 
Recognised Accoun�ng Prac�ce (GRAP) standards and updates. The 
commi�ee also held a workshop to consider the prac�cal implica-
�ons of crea�ng a single professional body for public finance 
management professionals.
The Ins�tute presented several webinars successfully as a result of 
Covid-19.

Standing Commi�ee on Research
This standing commi�ee has created a database that will assist mem-
bers who need to do research and/or obtain knowledge in certain 
areas. The Ins�tute has partnered with ter�ary ins�tu�ons, SA Ci�es 
network and the Financial and Fiscal Commission to publish some of 
the research papers on this database.
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Importance of  Branches
The Ins�tute has reposi�oned the branches in its overall approach 
and more emphasis are now placed on branch ac�vi�es and the 
interac�on of members through mini conferences, breakfast shows 
and workshops on topical issues. Branches are also required to 
improve their rela�onships with key stakeholders, such as South 
African Local Government Associa�on (SALGA), the provincial offices 
of CoGTA and Na�onal Treasury.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER GOVERNMENT DEPART-
MENTS AND STATUTORY BODIES
The Ins�tute values its strong rela�onship with bodies such as the 
South African Local Government Associa�on (SALGA), Coopera�ve 
Governance & Tradi�onal Affairs (CoGTA), Na�onal Treasury, Finan-
cial and Fiscal Commission (FFC), Accoun�ng Standards Board, 
Auditor-General, South African Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants, 
Accountant-General and ESI Africa. 
The Ins�tute has also maintained its rela�onship with relevant 
interna�onal organisa�ons. CIGFARO members and officials a�end-
ed the 2019 Government Finance Officers Associa�on (GFOA) 
Conference held in Los Angeles, USA, where the memorandum of 
understanding (MOU) between the organisa�ons was renewed for 
another 5 years un�l 2024. The Ins�tute also a�ended the 2019 
Chartered Ins�tute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
Conference, held in Birmingham, England. The MOU between CIGFA-
RO and CIPFA was also discussed at the conference and dual mem-
bership for CIGFARO members are on the table going forward. Devel-
opments regarding this exci�ng process will be communicated to 
members in the monthly newsle�er.

MAIN CHALLENGES
I have already alluded to some of the risks and challenges above. 
However, let me briefly list the main challenges again:
Membership
CIGFARO needs to come up with a clear strategy of how to grow the 
membership and the route responsibility for this should lie with 
branch chairpersons. It is also important that we have na�onal and 
provincial membership growing this to ensure the Ins�tute remains 
relevant in the public sector. It is therefore incumbent as a secondary 
responsibility for each member to encourage our fellow colleagues in 
the sector to become members.

Economic Climate
As for all organisa�ons and businesses, the current economic climate 
is a challenge. The Ins�tute will be prudent and conserva�ve with its 
finances. We will look at how we can increase our income streams. 
Cost-cu�ng and austerity measures have been implemented. The 
key to doing this is financial resilience. More needs to be done to 
resurrect a good revenue stream and reduce the dependence on 
conference revenue.

Single Professional Body
We are ac�vely pursuing this ini�a�ve. It will be a major achievement 
and we are pu�ng a lot of �me and effort into this. Obtaining poli�-
cal support is the key step. Various pla�orms were used to raise this 
very important issue and this include bilateral talks with ILGM, the 
two ministries men�oned above and ar�cles published in the media.

Ethics
Ethics is currently a major issue. We need ethical and transversal 
leadership in the public sector and our Code of Conduct and 
Ethics will certainly have a direct impact on improving the overall 
conduct of public servants, following the revela�ons in the 
judicial commission headed by Judge Zondo. The Code is specific 
to the public financial management sector. However, the Code 
has proven ineffec�ve un�l now, considering the audit outcomes 
by the Auditor-General in the public sector. We are a�emp�ng to 
educate all members with papers on ethics and values at all 
events to highlight the number irregulari�es, fraud and corrup-
�on.

CONCLUSION
I am grateful for the opportunity to serve as the President of 
CIGFARO in this exci�ng period of history in South Africa. I also 
want to thank the CEO, office staff and all CIGFARO members for 
their con�nuous support, guidance and coopera�on. It is sincere-
ly appreciated. CIGFARO has come a long way and has achieved a 
lot. However, there is s�ll a lot to do and as public servants we 
need to work in collabora�on with our stakeholders to create a 
be�er live for all. Most importantly, we will strive to add more 
value to our members. We need to con�nue to work together 
and build on our successes and address the challenges we face. 

PEET DU PLESSIS
PRESIDENT



CIGFARO ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 PAGE 7 

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW BY 
THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

1. INTRODUCTION
This report presents an account of all a�empts made by the ins�tute 
during the year under review (2019/2020) to stay afloat and remain 
relevant to the popula�on it serves. The performance successes, as 
well as shor�alls, are being highlighted as well as mi�ga�ng efforts to 
counter risks encountered during this period. 
It should be noted that the last lap of this financial year (2019/2020), 
experienced an unprecedented global economic slump due to the 
landing of the fearful COVID 19 Pandemic.

2. PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 
Our performance measurement tool, SCORECARD, had fi�y-two (52) 
set targets for the year under review. The performance outcomes are:

2.1 ACHIEVED (77%)
We managed to conclude 40 of the targets (77%). The achievements 
included amongst others:

2.2 PARTIALLY ACHIEVED (15%) 
Eight (8) targets were almost concluded, but the final stages could 
not be completed due to ma�ers beyond the control of Management 
and/or the Board. These eight (8) represented 15% of the total 
annual targets. All of them will be carried over to the next financial 
year (2020/2021) for conclusion.

2.3 NOT ACHIEVED (8%)
Four (4) targets could not be achieved, represen�ng 8% of the total 
targets. Minimal efforts were made due to the prevailing circum-
stances during the year. All four (4) have been carried over to the next 
financial year (2020/2021), because circumstances are now more 
favourable. These targets are: 

2.4 RISK MANAGEMENT
Seventeen (17) risk areas have been iden�fied at the beginning of the 
2019/2020 fiscal year. Sixty-five (65%) were concluded successfully. 
Twenty-nine (29%) were Par�ally Achieved, for the same reason as 
provided under item 2.2 above. All of them are carried over to 
2020/2021 fiscal year.

We could not achieve only one (1%) target. This is a low level, but 
important risk of con�nuously upda�ng our Board Members, by 
hos�ng an annual workshop as a mi�ga�ng ac�vity. It will be 

conclusion and approval of the Knowledge and Development Frame-
work which paved the way for the Migra�on of Members from old to 
new designa�ons,

successful capacita�on of regional/branch execu�ve commi�ees, 
resul�ng in the hos�ng of training workshops at all regions/branches 
for the first �me in one fiscal year. This has had a posi�ve impact on 
recruitment of new members in all Regions/Provinces, and 

the successful hos�ng, including the celebra�on of the ins�tute’s 
90th Annual Conference (anniversary). The drive to promote and 
market CIGFARO from all angles at all available pla�orms, was 
enhanced by these anniversary ac�vi�es. We managed to achieve 
more for less marke�ng and promo�onal costs.

finalisa�on of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the 
Na�onal Department of Corpora�ve Governance (COGTA). The 
Board did approve the dra� to be accepted and signed by COGTA. 
The unexpected departure of the COGTA Director General had a 
bearing on this crucial pending ma�er, and 

the implementa�on of a Students’ Chapter was delayed by 
instability at most campuses. 

nego�a�ons for MOU’s with ins�tu�ons of Higher Learning. We 
an�cipate stability at various targeted campuses and their 
management will be more focussed, 

finalisa�on of the new and revised Board Examina�ons as well as 
Logbooks processes will be achievable as the Framework is now 
approved,

registra�on of new Designa�ons with the South African Qualifica-
�ons Authority (SAQA) will be concluded as guided by the 
approved Framework and the revised Board Examina�ons, as well 
as the Logbook processes, and 

the Annual Corpora�ve Governance Workshop for Board Mem-
bers covering King’s Reports have now been pre-nego�ated with 
prospec�ve qualified presenters. 



CIGFARO ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 PAGE 8

3. WAY FORWARD – 2020/2021 FOCUS
The advent of the Corona Virus/Covid-19 pandemic has 
forced us to reflect and review our Plans and Risks 
during the last month of the 2019/2020 fiscal year. We 
had no op�on but to shoot while running by implement-
ing mi�ga�ng strategies with immediate effect where it 
was very crucial.

Our focus for 2020/2021 will mainly be on finding work-
ing solu�ons for the severe nega�ve impact of the 
COVID 19 on our Opera�ons as well as our Stakeholders. 

4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Our ins�tute has, overall, once more performed well. 
The problem in life is that, in instances of good perfor-
mance, some would seek instant individual gra�fica�on. 
Good performance cannot be achieved through solo 
efforts, even in a boxing match. As Fred De Wi� Van 
Amburgh says:

        “Gratitude is a currency that we can mint for 
ourselves and spend without fear of bankruptcy”.

It is against this background that I take this opportunity 
to thank all staff members, irrespec�ve of their individu-
al degree/level of contribu�on, for arriving at these 
year-end results. Many sacrifices were made, although 
some might be deemed insignificant, just as one cent is 
to a million rand. 

Our Board Members, under the able leadership of our 
President, Mr Peet Du Plessis, have con�nued to guide 
us in taking this ins�tute to greater heights. Their sacri-
fices and contribu�ons did not go unno�ced.

We do owe a special word of apprecia�on to all our 
Members in good standing and Stakeholders who stood 
by us through thick and thin. “Thank you”  

Our External Auditors, Rakoma & Associates Inc., have 
kept us on our toes since their first year of appointment 
to date. We do derive value for our money by the way 
you have executed your du�es. We appreciate that.

 

“God is always with us and will bring us through every 
calamity and hardship”.
( Errol Woods).  

Wishing everyone all the best in the new financial year 
2020/2021. Adios.

A.O. M Tlaletsi (Abbey)
Chief Executive Officer.
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B Brown
Branch Chairpersons: 

W-Cape

J Ngcelwane
Branch Chairpersons:

E-Cape

JJ Wagner
Branch Chairpersons:

N-Cape

A Jansen
Branch Chairpersons:

North West

T Lengwate 
Branch Chairpersons:

Mpumalanga

MM Makhongela 
Branch Chairpersons:

Limpopo

EN Ngcobo
Branch Chairpersons:

KZN
A Sheik 

Branch Chairpersons:
Gauteng

T Marumo
Branch Chairpersons:

Free State

THE BOARD

Peet du Plessis 
President

 K Kumar (Dr)
Past President 

A TLALETSI
 Chief Excecu�ve Officer

lS Mofokeng
Vice President-General 

C Reddy 
Vice President-Technical

LA Muller 
Technical Members

J Masite 
Technical Members

BN Ranchoddas 
Technical Members

Nc Dladla 
Technical Members

A Marais
Technical Members

Zp Malaza 
Technical Members

FB Khan (ADV)
General Members 

 A Bam-Smith (ADV)
General Members 

MJ Tshilwane
General Members 

SF Mndebele
General Members 
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Organisational 
Performance 2019/2020
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2019/2020 Annual Scorecard – 
Report

(1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020)

Strategic focus Total Achieved Par�ally 
Achieved 

Not 
Achieved 

       

Strategic Focus Area 1: To establish CIGFARO to be a 
recognised statutory professional body 4 2 2 0 

Strategic Focus Area 2: To represent and promote the 
interest of Prac��oners in Public Financial 
Management 

10 9 0 1 

Strategic Focus Area 3: To regulate the registra�on of 
members and con�nuous professional development 
of members 

9 5 2 2 

Strategic Focus Area 4: To maintain good corporate 
governance and financial sustainability 15 11 3 1 

Strategic Focus Area 5: To establish resources and 
technical capacity for current and future needs of the 
organisa�on 

6 5 1 0 

Strategic Focus Area 6: To develop and implement 
Communica�on and Marke�ng Framework 8 8 0 0 

TOTAL 2019-2020 52 77% 15% 8% 

Strategic focus Total Achieved Partially 
Achieved

Not 
Achieved
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2019/2020 Annual Scorecard – Report
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2019/2020 Annual Scorecard – Report

 

1. Strategic Objec�ve: To establish CIGFARO to be a recognised statutory professional body 

NO KPA 

(Measurable 
Objec�ves) 

KPI Performance Target/s  

(OUTPUT) 

Performance 
Delivery  

(Target Time) 

2019/2020 Final 
Outcome 

Comment 

1. 1a Execu�ve Summary  

 

 

 

 

 

Compile Ins�tute Business Plan Execu�ve Summary 1a1. Concluded and approved Execu�ve Summary  June 2019 Par�ally Achieved Execu�ve Summary compiled and 
presented to the Board. Strategic 
Planning Session to conclude the 
plan had to be rescheduled to next 
Financial Year (2020/2021). 

1b. Introduc�on of 
Ins�tute to Public 
Sector 

 

Market Ins�tute at Government Department & En��es 1b1. Introductory Mee�ngs held with NT, COGTA and 
Provincial Treasuries  

September 2019 Achieved Mee�ngs scheduled and held.  
Conclusion of formal agreement 
signing will be concluded during the 
next Financial Year (2020/2021) 

1c. Engagement 
mee�ngs Na�onal 
Treasury, CoGTA, 
SALGA and AGSA for 
con�nuous lobbying  

 

 

Sign and maintain MOU’s 1c1. Quarterly mee�ngs with each Stakeholder Each Quarter Par�ally Achieved The reviewed MOU’s and new 
proposal/mo�va�on for 
collabora�on were submi�ed to 
COGTA and Na�onal Treasury.  
Feedback is s�ll pending.  Ma�er to 
be concluded during the next 
Financial Year (2020/2021) 

1d. Strengthen 
Branches 

Report on events hosted per branch 1d1. Hosted one event per province half yearly. 

 

March 2020 Achieved All Provinces did host workshops as 
planned for members 
empowerment and recruitment. 

Strategic Objec�ve To represent and promote the interest of Prac��oners in Public Financial Management   

KPA 

(Measurable 
Objec�ves) 

KPI 

Performance Target/s  

(OUTPUT) 

Performance 

Delivery Target 
Time 

2019/2020 Final 
Outcome 

Comment 

2a. Provide guidance 
and input on Na�onal, 
Provincial and Local 
Government 
Legisla�on 

Host training interven�on sessions 2a1. Four training sessions hosted (Accredited and Non-
Accredited) 

Each Quarter  Achieved Sessions successfully held at all 
Provinces. 

Number of ini�a�ves to keep members updated on 
changes in policies/ legisla�ons/ court judgements 

 

2a2. Twelve newsletters & four Journals published 
Annually 

 

Quarterly  Achieved Publica�ons successfully released as 
planned. 

2a3. Annual Conference hosted 

 

 

October 2019 Achieved Conference hosted successfully. 

2a4. Audit & Risk Seminar hosted 

 

April 2019 Achieved Seminar hosted successfully. 

2a5. Public Sector Finance Seminar hosted July 2019 Achieved Seminar hosted successfully. 

2b. Professionalise 
membership 

SCKD Framework 2b1. Finalised and approved SCKD Framework 

 

June 2019 Achieved Board approved the SCKD 
Framework. 

Membership Designa�ons 2b2. Migrated old designations to newly approved 

 

March 2020 Achieved Members migrated to new 
designa�ons. 

2c. Strengthen Regions Membership Recruitment Drive 2c1. Membership increase of 5%  per Region attained  March 2020 

(Year-end) 

Achieved New members registered and 
acceptance le�ers issued. 

2d. Engagement 
mee�ngs with other 
Professional Bodies, 
SETA’s and Higher 
Educa�on Ins�tu�ons 

Iden�fy PB’s, SETA and Ter�ary Ins�tu�ons to sign MOU, 
MOA and MOC’s 

2d1. Signed at least 2 MOU, MOA and MOC’s per annum March 2020 Not Achieved Mee�ngs were held for ini�al 
discussions.  MOU signing deferred 
to next Financial Year (2020/2021). 

2e. Training 
Programmes 

Iden�fy relevant Training/Workshops topics 2e1. Training Schedule (Accredited/Non-Accredited) 

Developed 

End 2rd Quarter Achieved Schedule developed and endorsed by 
Na�onal Treasury.  Implementa�on 
done according to schedule. 
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2019/2020 Annual Scorecard – Report

 

Strategic Objec�ve: To regulate the registra�on of members and con�nuous professional development of members  

KPA 

(Measurable 
Objec�ves) 

KPI Performance Target/s  

(OUTPUT) 

Performance 

Delivery Target 
Time 

2019/2020 Final 
Outcome 

Comment 

3a. Issue guidelines 
for membership 
registra�on  

Finalisa�on of SCKD Framework 

 

3a1. Board approved Framework June 2019 Achieved SCKD Framework approved now 
under implementa�on. 

Professionalise designa�ons 

 

3a2. Board Exam/Logbook approved March 2020 Not Achieved Ma�er deferred to 2020/2021 as it 
requires more external 
consulta�ons. 

Register new designa�ons  
with SAQA 
 
 

3a3. SAQA designation change registration form 
submitted and approved 

November 2019 Not Achieved Ma�er deferred to 2020/2021 as it 
requires more external consulta�ons. 

3b. Training 
Assessment Plan 

 

Monitor and evaluate training ini�a�ves 
 
 
 

3b1. Training sessions monitoring reports submitted March 2020 Achieved Reports submi�ed and assessed for 
improvement of succeeding training 
sessions. 

3c. Membership 
Recruitment 

Recruitment campaign 
 
 

3c1. Membership increase of 5% per province a�ained March 2020 Achieved New members registered and 
acceptance le�ers issued. 

Membership Ini�a�ves 
 
 

3c2. Report on CPD Sta�s�cs submi�ed Quarterly Achieved Reports submi�ed and members 
kept updated. 

3d. Student 
Recruitment 

Implementa�on of Student Chapter Framework 

 

 

3d1. Student members to drive Graduate programme 
recruited. 

March 2020 Par�ally Achieved Compiled dra� will be submi�ed for 
approval during 2020/2021. 

Promote Student membership by visi�ng Ter�ary 
Ins�tu�ons 

 

3d2. Student’s 2% membership increase a�ained. March 2020 Par�ally Achieved Ma�er deferred to 2020/2021 due to 
student strikes. 

3e. Strengthen 
Branches 

Regional engagements 
 
 

 

3e1. One event per province hosted half yearly  March 2020 Achieved Events were successfully held at all 
provinces. 

 

4 Strategic Objec�ve: To maintain good corporate governance and financial sustainability 

NO KPA KPI Performance Target/s  

(OUTPUT) 

Performance 

Delivery Target 
Time 

2019/2020 Final 
Outcome 

Comment 

4. 4a. Compliance 
and financial 
viability with 
relevant legisla�on 
and clean report  

4b. Monitoring and 
evalua�on of 
strategy 

 

100% compliance with CIGFARO MOI 

  

4a1. MOI Checklist 

MOI Reviewed. 

 

June 2019 Achieved Review done and approved. 

100% compliance with the Board Charter 

 

4a2. Board Charter Checklist Reviewed. June 2019 Achieved Review done and approved. 

Review PMS Framework 4a3. Annual Review of all policies concluded.  

 

June 2019 Achieved Review done and approved. 

New Board Members Induc�on 4b1. Inducted new Board members on CIGFARO 
strategic opera�ons, Policies, MOI and Board Charter 

April 2019 Achieved Members inducted as planned. 

Board members capacita�on  4b2. Trained staff and Board Members on governance 
in terms of the Companies Act requirements and King 
principles. 

Half Yearly Not Achieved Ma�er deferred to 2020/2021 due 
to COVID-19. 

Board evalua�on 4b3. The evalua�on of the Board to be performed in 
every alternate year to monitor the Board performance 
and individual performance of Board members. 

March 2020 Par�ally Achieved Evalua�on tool designed.  
Implementa�on will take place 
during 2020/2021. 

Board Commi�ee func�onality 4b4. Ensure proper func�oning of Board Commi�ees 
through submi�ed reports. 

March 2020 Par�ally Achieved All commi�ees’ terms of reference 
were revised and are ready for 
implementa�on during 2020/2021. 

Quarterly - 4 Board mee�ngs held to ensure the monitoring 
& evalua�on of the strategy 

4b5. Quarterly Performance evalua�on and presen�ng 
of reports to the Board done. 

Quarterly  Achieved All reports presented to the Board 
and approved. 

4c. Compliance 
and financial 
viability with 
relevant legisla�on 
and clean report  

Development of Compliance register 

 
 

4c1. Compliance Register developed March 2020 

 

Achieved Register concluded and approved. 
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2019/2020 Annual Scorecard – Report

 

5 Strategic Objec�ve: To establish resources and technical capacity for current and future needs of the organiza�on 

NO KPA 

(Measurable 
Objec�ves) 

KPI Performance Target/s  

(OUTPUT) 

Performance 

Delivery Target 
Time 

2019/2020 Final 
Outcome 

Comment 

5. 5a. Staff Mul�-
skilling 

On the job-training provided for staff to assist other 
units/Depts. 

5a1. Performance reports covering du�es executed 
beyond staff member’s job descrip�on submi�ed. 

March 2020 Achieved Mul�-tasking training provided to 
staff to assist in other units. 

5b. Deployment of 
Re�red 
Professionals/Mem
bers 

Database of all re�red members  5b1. Data base compiled and some members u�lised. 

 

Quarterly Achieved Database compiled, approved and 
ready for usage. 

5c. Strengthen 
Regions 

Capacitate the Regional Execu�ve Commi�ee members 5c1. Report on Regional capacita�on submi�ed. Quarterly  Achieved Capacita�on session was 
successfully hosted. 

5d. Enhance IT Monitor Website Analy�cs  5d1. Report on Google Analy�cs submi�ed. Quarterly Achieved Submissions done and situa�on 
kept under control. 

Establish e-learning systems 5d2. Acquiring and Procuring of appropriate internet 
infrastructure concluded. 

4th Quarter Achieved Procured and u�lised as planned. 

Introducing VOIP telephone system 5d3. Acquiring and Procuring of appropriate telephone 
system concluded. 

4th Quarter Par�ally Achieved Sourcing of quota�ons concluded.  
Procurement and installa�on to be 
concluded during 2020/2021. 

 

6 Strategic Objec�ve: To develop and implement Communica�on and Marke�ng Framework 

NO KPA 

(Measurable 
Objec�ves) 

KPI Performance Target/s  

(OUTPUT) 

Performance 

Delivery Target 
Time 

2019/2020 Final 
Outcome 

Comment 

6. 6a. Create 
awareness of 
CIGFARO 90th 
celebra�on in the 
industry 

Number of media releases 6a1. Four media releases done. Quarterly  Achieved Media statements released as 
planned. 

Number of publica�ons on internet 6a2 Four publica�ons on internet released. Half Yearly Achieved Publica�ons released as planned. 

Number print publica�ons 6a3. Four print publica�ons done. Half Yearly Achieved Publica�ons released as planned. 

Number of digital marke�ng 6a4. 12 communique updates done. Events based Achieved Updates communicated as planned. 
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OUR STAFF

D. KGOOHO 
RECEPTiONiST

E. GUMATA
COMMUNiCATiON COORDiNATOR 

G. NKHOMA 
TRAiNiNG & DEVELOPMENT 

A. MOTLOUNG
CPD ADMiNiSTRATOR

O.F PILANE 
MARKETiNG iNTERN 

A. TLALETSI
CHiEF EXCECUTiVE OFFiCER

L. NOLTE 
MANAGER: MEMBERSHiP SERViCES 

T. HOFFMAN 
ADMiNiSTRATiVE & FACiLiTiES 

SUPERViSOR

H.  TSEKE
MARKETiNG COORDiNATOR 

O. MAKALIMA 
MANAGER: MARKETiNG &

 COMMUNiCATiON

N. SHONGWE
COMPANY SECRETARY

T. OLIFANT 
ADMiNiSTRATOR: FiNANCE 

I. KOTZE 
CHiEF FiNANCE OFFiCER 

L. MAKOPO 
ADMiNiSTRATiVE ASSiSTANT

A. RWAZEMBA
ICT OFFiCER

S. NGWANA 
TRAiNiNG DELiVERY
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON 
BUDGET and FINANCE 



2. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
The commi�ee have the following du�es and responsibili�es:
         • Assis�ng the Presidency in overseeing the financial planning of CIGFARO and ensuring full integra�on       
             with  the long term planning and mission of CIGFARO;
         • Assis�ng the Presidency with monitoring the quarterly budget and spending pa�erns;
         • Reviewing the quarterly financial reports before it is presented to the Audit and Risk Commi�ee and     
             subsequent approval by the Board;
         • Assis�ng the Presidency with monitoring revenue management of CIGFARO;
         • Reviewing the Adjustment Budget for considera�on by the Board;
         • Quality assurance of the Annual Financial Statement before review by the Audit and Risk Commi�ee.
         • Quality assurance of the review of the CIGFARO Financial Policies annually;
         • Reviewing fees, tariffs and charges to be levied by CIGFARO and its Provincial Branches for all its events, 

3.1 FINANCIAL REVEVIEW AND FINANCIAL PLANNING  

During these mee�ngs the commi�ee members:
          • Monitored debtor collec�on and project budgets;
          • Monitored cash flow forecasts for the next 3 years, taking into account the cash flow of building the                 
             new office and the new proposed organogram and performance bonuses for staff.
          •Monitored the quarterly spending pa�erns of the ins�tute against the approved budget for the              
             2019/20 financial year, No material problems were experienced.
         •  Reviewed the proposed budget for the 2020/21 financial year and recommended a tariff structure
             for the 2020/21 financial year.
         • Reviewed the risks related to the financial sustainability of CIGFARO and related revenue sources. 

The financial results for the year ending 31 March 2020 shows that CIGFARO is in a reasonably stable financial 
posi�on. This reflects favourably on the work performed during the year by the Board and Administra�on.

The Commi�ee reviewed the following financial policies during the financial year:
- Accoun�ng Policy (review) – Changing from IFRS to IFRS for SME
- Investment and Loan Redemp�on Policy (review)
- Financial Policy for Provincial Branches (review)
- Supply Chain Policy (review)
- Budget Policy.
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  STANDING COMMITTEE ON BUDGET and FINANCE (SCBF)

1.  MEMBERS AS AT 31 MARCH 2020
Members: 
Chairperson    Zanele Malaza
Deputy Chairperson    Cheryl Reddy (Ms.)
President    Peet du Plessis
Past President    Krish Kumar 
Vice Presidents (General)  Sidwell Mofokeng   
 

Secretariat: 
Chief Execu�ve Officer  Abbey Tlaletsi 
Chief Finance Officer   Ira Kotze (Ms)
Company Secretary   Nonhlanhla Shongwe (Ms)



4. REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

These financial statements (2019/20) have been prepared in accordance with Interna�onal Financial Report-
ing Standards for small to medium - sized en��es. The financial statements are further prepared on the 
going-concern basis, since the Ins�tute Board has every reason to believe that the Ins�tute has adequate 
resources in place to con�nue for the foreseeable future.

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS
The financial year under review has been successfully closed off with a net profit of R2 657 022 (2019: net 
profit R1 281 773).  The main reason for the profit is from Income from Conferences, Indabas, Seminars and 
courses that CIGFARO presented and the mSCOA Project rollout together with Na�onal Treasury.
Schedule reflects surpluses (deficit) of Conferences, Seminars and CPD courses.

Assets
Net value of assets increased by R 1.6 million to R 37.2 million (2019: R 35.6 million). All addi�onal cash 
resources were invested with corporate banks to ensure maximum interest earnings. 

Trade and other receivables increased from R174 189 to R719 261, that includes an amount of R203 383 
receivable from SARS for VAT. The rest is showing an increase in debtors’ receivable from sponsors, delegates 
and members a�ending CPD workshops, only during the 2019-2020 financial year.

Liabili�es
Liabili�es decreased by R955 837 to R1.9 million (2019: R2.8 million). This includes income of R850 120 
received in advance from delegates and sponsors for Conferences and Indabas happening a�er the financial 
year end. A finance lease was encumbered for the lease of a photo copier with a remainder long term obliga-
�on of R68 730. 
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  STANDING COMMITTEE ON BUDGET and FINANCE (SCBF)

 

 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

Detail Income 

000 

Expenditure 

000 

Surplus 

000 

Surplus 

000 

Annual Conference 
 

R12 233  -R4 4656 R7 768 R8 385 

Audit Risk Indaba R2 267  -R961 R1 305  n/a 

Public Sector 
Accounting & 
Mscoa Seminar 

R1 150  -R388 R762 R432 

CPD Courses R421  -R257 R164 -R76 

NT mSCOA CPD 
courses 
 

R746  -R458 R287 R161 

Regional Branch 
Activities 

R3 223  -R3 282 (R59) R189 

   R10 227 R9 092 

 



Gross surplus – Increased with 12% 
Revenue from CPD-Conferences, seminars, workshops & training for the year is R20 million (2019: R14.9 
million) which reflects a material increase of R5.2 million. This is mainly related to the Ins�tute changing the 
structure of delegate and sponsorship packages, to accommodate the requirements set by Na�onal Treasury 
for cost containment purposes.   The main income stream is from the annual conference, the mSCOA(NT) Proj-
ect and courses conducted during the year which jointly comprises 96% while membership fees and other 
income contribute 4%. The income derived from conferences and courses are seen as an extensions of the 
services provided to members and other persons working in the public sector, to strengthen the profession.
 
Opera�ng Expenditure – Increased with 2%
Highligh�ng increases in expenditure
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  STANDING COMMITTEE ON BUDGET and FINANCE (SCBF)

Item % 
increase 

Value Reasons 

Other Operating 
expenses increased  

2% 
R 9 979 233 

Increase by 
 R 180 644 from 2019 

The Institute implemented cost saving 
measures in line with National Treasury 
circulars. (This is not a material increase) 
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Standing Committee
on Remuneration & 
Nomination (SCRN)



2. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 Commi�ee Responsibili�es - Nomina�ons and Elec�ons
The commi�ee is mandated to carry out the du�es below for the Ins�tute, as appropriate.
The commi�ee has the responsibility to:
2.1.1  Regularly review the structure, size and composi�on (including the skills, knowledge, 
 experience and diversity) of the board and make recommenda�ons to the board, including   
 any relevant changes to the Company’s Memorandum of Incorpora�on (the MoI)

2.1.2  Iden�fy and nominate candidates to fill the board’s standing commi�ees’ vacancies, as and  
  when they arise for the approval of the board

2.1.3  Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of recommended    
 appointees before anyone is co-opted to commi�ees by the Board. Regarding this evalua�on,   
 the commi�ee must prepare a descrip�on of the role and capabili�es required for a    
 par�cular co-op�on. 

 In iden�fying suitable candidates, the commi�ee shall:
 a) Use open adver�sing or the services of external advisers to facilitate the search;
 b) Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, and
 c) Consider candidates on merit against objec�ve criteria and with due regard to the benefits of   
 diversity including gender, taking care that appointees have enough �me available to devote to the  
 posi�on
2.1.4  Oversee the elec�on process per the board approved nomina�on and elec�on framework.

2.2 Remunera�on and Performance

The commi�ee shall:
2.2.1  Annually review the remunera�on and performance of the Chief Execu�ve Officer and Senior   
 Management.
2.2.2  Annually review the basis of calcula�on for staff remunera�on to ensure that it appears reasonable.
2.2.3  Annually review the current industry prac�ce on staff remunera�on.
2.2.4  Annually review the different methods of remunera�ng the Chief Execu�ve Officer and Senior   
 Management.
2.2.5  Inves�gate whether it is in the interest of CIGFARO to establish a pension fund scheme and medical  
 aid benefits for its employees.
2.2.6  Annually review any exis�ng and proposed fringe benefits.
2.2.7  Review re�rement and termina�on payments.
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Standing Committee on Remuneration & Nomination (SCRN)

1. MEMBERS
Chairperson    Krish Kumar 
President    Mr Peet Du Plessis
Vice Presidents   Ms Cheryl Reddy (Ms) 
    Sidwell Mofokeng

Secretariat:
Chief Execu�ve Officer Abbey Tlaletsi
Chief Finance Officer   Ira Kotze (Ms)
Company Secretary   Nonhlanhla Shongwe (Ms)



3. GOVERNANCE: Performance Management and Risk Management;
3.1 Performance Management
Performance management should be done to:
 3.1.1  Monitor and evaluate the performance of the organisa�on
 3.1.2 Monitor and review performance of the CEO and staff.

3.2. Risk Management
Risk management should be done to monitor and evaluate the risk management processes of the 
organisa�on.

3.3 OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES
Other responsibili�es are to:
 3.3.1 Review the terms of reference of other board commi�ees regarding its alignment to the 
  company’s strategy.
 3.3.2  Annually review all staff policies, such as leave, study, recruitment, travelling and substance,  
  employee private work and financial interest, records management, performance 
  management framework and policy, sexual harassment, risk management strategy and policy,
  communica�on protocol policy and any other policies rela�ng to staff.

4. AUTHORITY
 4.1  The board supports and endorses this Commi�ee to operate independently of management  
  and is free of any organisa�onal impairment.
 4.2  The Commi�ee has unrestricted access to all informa�on, including records, property and  
  personnel of the Ins�tute and adequate resources must be provided to fulfil its   
  responsibili�es.
 4.3  The Commi�ee is delegated to:
a) Inves�gate any ac�vi�es within its terms of reference.
b) Seek outside legal or other independent professional advice.
c) Secure the a�endance of outsiders with the relevant experience where necessary at the Ins�tutes’ expense 
and
d) Seek any informa�on it requires from any employee. All employees are directed to co-operate with any 
requests made by the Remunera�on Commi�ee.

5. CIGFARO POLICIES
The Commi�ee reviewed all of the Ins�tute’s policies and presented recommenda�ons to the Board, which 
duly granted approval for implementa�on

2.2.8  Review related party transac�ons and disclosure, if any.
2.2.9  Make recommenda�ons to the board on remunera�on packages and policies applicable to   
 management and staff of the Ins�tute.
2.2.10  Ensure the formal systems of succession planning for the Chief Execu�ve Officer and Senior   
 Management.
2.2.11  Oversee the process of staff placement.
2.2.12  Ensure that the Ins�tute has a Human Resource Development (HRD) Framework and policy in place.  
 The Structural and HRD framework that is applicable/in compliance must also be in place.
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Standing Committee on Remuneration & Nomination (SCRN)



6. CIGFARO SECRETARIAT
Appointments and resigna�ons
During the 2019/20 financial year, there were no changes within the Secretariat. 
The Secretariat during the year was structured as follows:

Chief Execu�ve Officer    A. Tlaletsi
Chief Finance Officer     I. Kotze (Ms)
Company Secretary      N. Shongwe (Ms)
Manager: Membership Services  L. Nolte (Ms)
Manager: Marke�ng and Communica�on O. Makalima (Ms)
Training Delivery Specialist    S. Ngwana (Ms)
Payroll and Finance Administrator     T. Olifant (Ms)
Training and Development Admin   G. Nkhoma (Ms)
Administra�ve and Facili�es Supervisor T. Hoffman (Ms)
Communica�on Co-ordinator   E. Gumata (Ms)
Marke�ng Co-ordinator    H. Tseke
CPD Officer      A. Motloung (Ms)
Administra�ve Assistant    L. Makopo (Ms)
Recep�onist      D. Kgohoo (Ms) 
Marke�ng Intern     O. Pelane
Cleaning Assistant     Outsourced Company
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STANDING COMMITTEE 
ON COMMUNICATION 
and MARKETING (SCCM)
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON COMMUNICATION and MARKETING (SCCM)

1 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The commi�ee is responsible for the:
1.1    Development, implementa�on and maintenance of a policy for communica�on and marke�ng. 
1.2    Communica�on/dissemina�on of documenta�on and informa�on about the ac�vi�es of CIGFARO 
          to the:
 -Board
 -Standing Commi�ees
 -Ins�tute Members
 -Relevant na�onal and interna�onal Ins�tutes
 -Stakeholders.
1.3     Development and maintenance of internal and external communica�on channels for the ins�tute to        
           convey a posi�ve message by means of:
 -Television
 -Radio
 -Press
 -Wri�en Material
 -Liaison
 -Journal
 -Web
 -Newsle�er
 -Relevant Social Media.
1.4     Communica�on and marke�ng of public sector and related professions content (on academic, legal        
           and general ma�ers). 
1.5     Promo�on of the image and objec�ves of the Ins�tute through communica�on and marke�ng   
           of informa�on. 
1.6     Management and maintenance of the publica�on of the CIGFARO Journal.
1.7     Compila�on of an opera�ng budget related to the needs of the commi�ee.
1.8     Coordina�on of administra�ve ma�ers for the efficient opera�on of the Ins�tute’s Annual    
           Conference and all other conferences including Women, Audit and Risk INDABA.

1. MEMBERS

Chairperson      Louise Muller (Ms)
Vice Chairperson    A�e Jansen
Vice President     Sidwell Mofokeng   
Board members    Nosipho Dladla (Ms)
      Emmanuel Ngcobo
      Jackson Ngcelwane 
SECRETARIAT:
Chief Execu�ve Officer   Abbey laletsi    
Communica�on and Marke�ng Manager Ocean Makalima (Ms)  
Membership Services Manager  Lindi Nolte (Ms)
Communica�on Officer   Esther Gumata (Ms)   
Marke�ng Officer    Hloni Tseke
ICT Support Officer    Archford Rwazemba
Company Secretariat    Nonhlanhla Shongwe
Admin Assistant    Lydia Makopo
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON COMMUNICATION and MARKETING (SCCM)

2. MEETINGS AND ACTIVITIES
The Standing Commi�ee mee�ngs on Communica�on and Marke�ng (SCC&M) were held as follows:
 •Teleconference - 24 January 2019 @ 08:30 -09:30
 •Teleconference - 22 March 2019 @ 08:30 – 10:15am
 •Teleconference - 24 June 2019 @ 08:30 - 09:30
 •Teleconference - 12 August 2019 @09:00 – 10:00
 •Teleconference - 09 March 2020 @ 08:30 – 09:30.

SCCM has been enabled to func�on as an independent commi�ee to include marke�ng and all conference 
func�ons and other CIGFARO events. 

The following ma�ers were dealt with:
2.1 JOURNAL
 a)  The commi�ee con�nues to strive towards ensuring that the journal is self-sustainable by  
  looking at innova�ve ways of dealing with produc�on and distribu�on costs and promo�ng  
  adver�sing in the journal. 
 b) The Journal is indexed by Sabinet.
 c) The CIGFARO Journal was published quarterly.
 d) The commi�ee con�nues to strive towards ensuring that the Journal publishes relevant current  
  news and informa�ve ar�cles inspiring excellence in service delivery.   
 e) The commi�ee has published ar�cles in the Journal prepared by the Research Commi�ee or  
  academic papers from members and poten�al members.

The CIGFARO Journal is aimed at government prac��oners and seeks to reflect a broad spectrum of thought and 
prac�ce in the finance and audit and risk sphere. Ar�cles cover various relevant topics that affect government 
prac��oners.  The Journal shares all CIGFARO branch ac�vi�es and gives our adver�sers an opportunity to 
expose prac��oners to the new developments and service standards offered by government service providers.  

The commi�ee aims to distribute the journal to a much wider audience and seeks to engage stakeholders to 
publish topical thought leadership ar�cles in the Journal. The aim is to distribute the Journal in a way that 
ensures that the CIGFARO brand is found in all areas where government finance, risk management and internal 
audit issues are discussed. Members have contributed less relevant ar�cles for the Journal.

The quarterly journal has been supplemented by a monthly newsle�er distributed to all CIGFARO members and 
non-members on the database. The CIGFARO monthly newsle�er serves as a communica�ons channel between 
the office, provincial branches and CIGFARO members, stakeholders, universi�es and public sector service 
providers. Once again, the newsle�er has given our adver�sers an opportunity to expose prac��oners to the 
new developments and service standards offered by government service providers.  

The editorial commi�ee, that not only reviews all submissions for the Journal, but also reviews internal records 
of mee�ngs, consists of these members:
 • Fathima Khan
 • Louise Muller
 • Nosipho Dladla
 • Emmanuel Ngcobo.
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STANDING COMMITTEE ON COMMUNICATION and MARKETING (SCCM)

2.2  CIGFARO Annual Event
2.2.1 90TH CIGFARO Conference
The commi�ee was responsible for:
 • Compiling and prin�ng the conference programme for the Annual Conference 
 • Distribu�on of the conference programme 
 • Marke�ng and adver�sing of the 90th Annual Conference on different pla�orms
 • Selec�ng the topics, obtaining the speakers and liaison with speakers
 • Arranging logis�cs for speakers and all par�cipants
 • Compila�on, prin�ng and distribu�on of a daily newspaper at the Conference
 • Compila�on, prin�ng and distribu�on of the Informa�on Booklet, which comprised of the Final  
  Conference Programme, Speakers’ Profile, Exhibitor Directory and Delegates List
 • Media par�cipa�on including social media and a mobile app.

The Ins�tute’s Annual Conference was held from 07 October to 09 October 2019 at Durban ICC, eThekwini. The 
speakers from both the public and private sectors made valuable contribu�ons based on the conference theme: 
“TRANSFORMATIONAL LEADERSHIP IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR”.

The par�cipants in the breakaway sessions benefi�ed from the prac�cal exper�se provided at each session.  All 
breakaway sessions received maximum a�endance, with delegates earning 2 extra CPD points per session 
a�ended. The Ins�tute’s board members played a major part in facilita�ng the breakaway sessions, which 
helped with running them smoothly. Scanners were used to capture a�endance of the various breakaway 
sessions to ensure that the relevant CPD points were allocated to delegates. Delegates could contact the office 
a�erwards to collect or request their cer�ficates of a�endance electronically.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) assisted the Ins�tute with the Conference Summary Booklet for the en�re 2019 
Conference. The Ins�tute appreciates all the efforts made in arranging scribes to summarise all presenta�ons 
and we hope that we can s�ll work together in the future. 

2.2.1 CONFERENCE EXHIBITION
The 2019 conference exhibi�on had 53 organisa�ons exhibi�ng, which was the precise number of companies 
that par�cipated in the 2018 conference. These organisa�ons bought 72 exhibi�on stands. The Ins�tute has 
realised that there is a slight change in spending from exhibitors due to the tough economic climate in the coun-
try. The deepening recession has eroded the financial standing and op�mism of a broad swathe of South 
Africans. In the exhibi�on industry, we have felt the impact of that economic uncertainty with all our annual 
shows seeing a�endance shrink. It is therefore not surprising that many companies are cu�ng back when it 
comes to their trade show budgets. Exhibi�on managers are now focusing on doing more with less. We there-
fore remain op�mis�c about our ability to maintain and improve our programmes' results in the face of econom-
ic uncertainty. 

CIGFARO would like to extend its gra�tude to the eThekwini Municipality for availing staff and resources towards 
the success of the conference and especially for the mayoral func�on held on 07 October 2019. It is important 
to acknowledge and express gra�tude to the members of the Standing Commi�ee on Communica�on and Mar-
ke�ng, the Conference Secretary, the breakaway convenors, panel members, stakeholders and any other par�es 
involved in making the conference a success. Thank you once again to the secretariat for the excellent planning 
and arrangements in organising the conference. Last, but not least, we would like to acknowledge our Pla�num 
Sponsor, N�yiso Consul�ng, who partnered with CIGFARO for the first �me and will con�nue to support CIGFA-
RO for the next three years to achieve greater heights and deliver be�er service each year in hos�ng our annual 
conference between 2019 and 2021.

Ms Louise Muller
Chairperson:  Standing Commi�ee on Communica�on and Marke�ng
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Standing Committee on Research (SCR)

1 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
The commi�ee is responsible for: 
 1.1. Developing and upholding a Code of Ethics for Research.
 1.2. Liaising with higher educa�on and research ins�tu�ons, as well as individual researchers  
  and the Standing Commi�ees of CIGFARO, about research topics. 
 1.3. Iden�fying research topics and assess, approve and oversee the implementa�on of research  
  projects that could enhance the achievement of the Ins�tute’s objec�ves.
 1.4. Iden�fying research ins�tu�ons and researchers that can conduct research on behalf of   
  CIGFARO.
 1.5. Commissioning the wri�ng of scien�fic ar�cles based on the research findings and direc�ng  
  their publica�on in scien�fic journals.
 1.6. Overseeing the iden�fica�on of funding opportuni�es for research and ensuring that the  
  requisite applica�ons and proposals are submi�ed to relevant funders.
 1.7. Encouraging CIGFARO members, as municipal finance prac��oners and related professions,  
  to be involved in research projects and the wri�ng of scien�fic ar�cles to enhance the   
  research capability of CIGFARO members.
 1.8. Compiling an annual plan of ac�on for the Standing Commi�ee based on CIGFARO’s   
  strategic plan.
 1.9. Compiling an opera�ng budget based on the annual plan of ac�on to meet the needs of the  
  Standing Commi�ee.
 1.10. Submi�ng all research ini�a�ves for approval to the board.
 1.11. Ensuring that research funded by CIGFARO becomes the intellectual property of  CIGFARO.
 1.12. Iden�fying relevant topical research undertaken by academics and/or public officials for   
  publica�on in the CIGFARO Journal and/or presenta�on at appropriate forums.

2. The 2019/20 Commi�ee repor�ng
Due to some challenges during the financial year, the Standing Commi�ee on Research has not made much 
progress in the last year. The partnership with SA Ci�es Network and SALGA has suffered as most organisa-
�ons have not produced many research papers.
The Standing Commi�ee on Research did not meet the plan of ac�on required for the year and its targets 
have been sadly missed. However, a few research papers have been posted on the media sec�on of the web-
site.
The next few months should see some research on the impact of the lockdown on government and service 
delivery which will be posted.

1. MEMBERS
Chairperson    Fathima Khan (Adv.) 
    Louise Muller (Ms)
    Bradley Brown  
    Thandiwe Lengwate (Ms)
    Jameson Tshilwane
Secretariat:
Chief Execu�ve Officer Abbey Tlaletsi
Chief Finance Officer   Ira Kotze (Ms)
Company Secretary   Nonhlanhla Shongwe (Ms)
Admin Assistant  Lydia Makopo (Ms)
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2. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
The commi�ee has the following du�es and responsibili�es:
 1.1 Development and monitoring of capacity building programmes in all professional disciplines  
  catered for in CIGFARO MoI.
 1.2 Developing and maintaining as well as monitoring all per�nent aspects of educa�on and   
  training requirements of the Ins�tute’s members.
 1.3 Recommending training programmes for board approval for Finance and related professions.
 1.4 Par�cipa�ng in the SAQA and HET qualifica�ons and training standards development.
 1.5 Screening and approving all training providers facilita�ng training under the auspices of   
  CIGFARO and recommending appropriate standards of facilita�on and assessment.
 1.6 Recommending training tariffs and fees for CIGFARO training and seminars in consulta�on  
  with SCRN.
 1.7 Liaising with Supply Chain Management, Asset Management, Internal Audit,    
  Risk Management, Revenue Management and Values and Ra�ng and Accoun�ng Prac�ce  
  Streams on Norms, Standards, Curriculum, Assessment, Q&A and best prac�ces guidelines.
 1.8 Liaising with educa�onal ins�tu�ons and others in collabora�on with SCPCQA.
 1.9 Assis�ng with the coordina�on of mentor and assessor programmes, including the   
  maintenance of a database of assessors and moderators in the public sector finance and   
  related professions.
 1.10 Compiling an opera�ng budget related to the needs of the Commi�ee annually. 
 1.11 Considering any ma�ers referred to the Commi�ee by the Board.
 1.12 Considering any ma�ers referred to the Board by the Commi�ee.

3. THE COMMITTEE’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
Strategic objec�ve: Providing appropriate educa�on and training programmes for the development of public 
sector finance and related professions.

Measurable Objec�ves:
 1. To iden�fy the public sector’s finance and governance’s skills gaps;
 2. To provide training responsive to the iden�fied skills gap in the public sector’s finance and  
  governance areas;
 3. To monitor and track the con�nuing professional development of Members;
 4. To act as Project Manager for the skills development programmes ini�ated by other stake 
  holders, such as the LGSETA.

STANDING COMMITTEE ON KNOWLEDGE AND DEVELOPMENT (SCKD)

1. MEMBERS: 
Chairperson  Sidwell Mofokeng     CIGFARO Vice President General 
Board Members Emmanuel Ngcobo 
   Jackson Ngcelwane 
   Maria Makhongela (Ms) 
   Thandi Lengwate (Ms) 
   Thuso Marumo 
   Jameson Tshilwane
Secretariat  Seba Ngwana (Ms) 
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4. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT TRAINING INITIATIVES 
It is the objec�ve of the Ins�tute to keep its members up to date with developments in the profession.  
The Commi�ee iden�fied the following skills gaps in the Public Sector:
 1. Updates and changes in GRAP
 2. Impact of/on GRAP 
 3. Revenue Enhancement Management
 4. Advanced Excel 
 5. Value Added Tax
 6.  TTT refresher
 7.  Na�onal budge�ng workshop
 8. Audit and Risk Indaba
 9. Public Sector GRAP Seminar.
The sessions responded to the iden�fied skills gap needs by providing a�endees with the following contents 
or objec�ves on each topic.

5. UPDATES & CHANGES IN GRAP
The objec�ves of the training are to enable par�cipants to understand: 

 • The background and process of developing GRAP.
 • The GRAP compliance framework in public finance management.
 • The accoun�ng framework applicable to the 2016/17 financial year.
 • The new GRAP updates and new standards.
 • The contents of GRAP Annual Financial Statements and disclosure requirements in terms of  
  GRAP.
The latest updates issued by the Accoun�ng Standards Board were used in the training, together with selected 
examples.

6. IMPACT OF GRAP
The objec�ves of the training are to enable par�cipants to understand: 

 1. Basic accoun�ng principles
 2. The accoun�ng framework applicable to municipali�es and municipal en��es
 3. Presenta�on of financial statements
 4. Borrowing cost
 5. Consolidated and separate financial statements
 6. Inventories
 7. Leases
 8. Investment property
 9. Property, plant and equipment
 10. Segment repor�ng
 11. Intangible assets
 12. Provision, con�gent liabili�es and con�gent assets
 13. Revenue from non-exchange transac�ons
 14. Impairment from non-cash genera�ng assets and impairment of cash genera�ng assets
 15. Employee benefits
 16. Discon�nued opera�ons
 17. Heritage assets
 18. Financial instruments.

STANDING COMMITTEE ON KNOWLEDGE AND DEVELOPMENT (SCKD)
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7. REVENUE ENHANCEMENT MANAGEMENT

The objec�ves of the workshop are to enable par�cipants in: - 
Billing
 • Requirements for sound revenue management
 • Circular 64 by Treasury
 • Legal requirements for a valid, accurate account
 • Principles of billing
 • Tariff policy
 • Tariff by-law
 • If no by- law, can we enforce charges?
 • Requirements for valid tariffs
 • Differen�a�on of tariffs – how and when allowed
 • Meter readings
 • Tariffs and charges where es�mates have been used in past
 • Time to fix inaccurate accounts
 • Systems Act requirements on customer care and what it actually means for:
   o By-laws
   o Tariff calcula�on
   o Public par�cipa�on
   o Property rates.

8. COLLECTION OF REVENUE BILLED
 
Credit control and debt collec�on
Clearance cer�ficates – also a cri�cal tool for effec�ve collec�on. 

9. REPORTING – from first accoun�ng entry to disclosure in AFS, common revenue audit qualifica�ons and 
how to prevent them

 • Actual accoun�ng entry per type of transac�on
 • Internal control especially over pre-paid sales where most municipali�es lack control
 • Impairment of debtors/ Calcula�ng provision for bad debts 
 • Revenue – disclosure in Sec�on 71 reports, AFS
 • Revenue and related ma�ers – disclosure in AFS
 • Common audit qualifica�ons on revenue and how to a�end to them.

10. ADVANCED EXCEL 

The objec�ves of the workshop are to enable par�cipants to: - 

Use a graphical user interface (GUI)-based spread sheet applica�on to solve a given problem. This unit stan-
dard is intended for people who need to plan, produce and use spread sheets to solve problems using a Graph-
ical User Interface (GUI)-based spread sheet applica�on, either as a user of computers or as basic knowledge 
for a career needing this competency, like the ICT industry. Where wording is not exact for the chosen operat-
ing system, the learner can choose the equivalent item or op�on to demonstrate competence in the specific 
outcome or assessment criteria. 

STANDING COMMITTEE ON KNOWLEDGE AND DEVELOPMENT (SCKD)



CIGFARO ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 PAGE 35

11. VALUE ADDED TAX
The objec�ves of the workshop are to enable par�cipants to understand the: 
 •Background
  -Basis of accoun�ng
  -Pricing
 •Income stream
  -Provision of goods
  -Provision of services
 •Expenditure stream 
  -Orders
  -Delivery
  -Payment
 •Complex ma�ers
  •Contracts / tenders
   -Spanning date of change
   -Construc�on contracts
   -Reten�ons
   -Other issues
  •Property Transac�ons’
   -Commercial proper�es
   -Residen�al 
   -Stores
 •System changes
 •Financial implica�ons
  -Budget 2017 / 2018
  -Budget 2018 / 2019
 •Comple�on of VAT returns
  -Reports at cut over dates.

Preferred Trainer Refresher Training (Refresher - mSCOA Module 3)

The objec�ves of the workshop are to enable par�cipants to understand: 
 •Budge�ng in mSCOA
 •Transac�ng in mSCOA.
 
12. NATIONAL BUDGETING WORKSHOP
Held on 6-8 November 2019 in Gauteng at the Birchwood Hotel, a�ended by 297 delegates.
The program included the following topics:

 • mSCOA Chart Tree – PART 1 & 2
 • Balance sheet budge�ng in an mSCOA environment – PART 1& 2
 • Cash flow budge�ng
 • Adop�ng a funded budget
 • -Revenue Management - PART 1 & 2

STANDING COMMITTEE ON KNOWLEDGE AND DEVELOPMENT (SCKD)
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The commi�ee acted as project manager for the skills development programme ini�ated by Na�onal Treasury 
by arranging the following training session for the preferred trainers.

Total Sessions held & A�endance
20 Sessions held with a total of 271 a�endees. 

Con�nuous Professional Development of members
CIGFARO Members accumulated 6 CPD points for a 2-day session and 3 CPD points for a 1-day session a�end-
ed.

13. AUDIT & RISK INDABA
Held on 10-12 April 2019 in East London at the ICC, a�ended by 466 delegates.
The program included the following topics:
 • Consequence Management in the Public Sector 
 • Public Audit Amendment Act – Is it posi�ve or nega�ve for enhanced accountability and   
  consequence management? 
 • The role and importance of compliance officers 
 • Different approaches to capacitate internal audit in public sector
 • Leveraging technology in capacita�ng Internal Auditors
 • Leadership and governance challenges faced by the public sector
 • Performance, risk and sustainability – Enhancing service delivery through integra�ng   
  performance, risk and sustainability
 • Role of internal audi�ng ac�vi�es on Mscoa
 • Relevance and a�tude on King IV in the public sector
 • Geared up for New Dawn, New Environment
 • How to conduct preliminary inves�ga�ons, gearing up for the New Dawn
 • Effec�ve governance in the New Dawn
 • Audit of performance management system
 • Risk management universe

14. PUBLIC SECTOR GRAP SEMINAR
Held on 8-9 July 2019 in Gauteng at Emperors Palace, a�ended by 382 delegates.
The program included the following topics:
 • mSCOA Repor�ng Requirements
 • mSCOA Aligned AFS specimen
 • Disclosure of irregular, wasteful and irregular expenditure
 • 2018/19 mSCOA Audit
 • GRAP-related Issues (Financial Statement Prepara�on)
 • SCM-Related Issues
 • Arrangements regarding extension of service level agreements for RT25-2016 par�cipants
 • Linking municipal systems to the Central Suppliers Database.

STANDING COMMITTEE ON KNOWLEDGE AND DEVELOPMENT (SCKD)

Members as during the year 1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020
The following sub-commi�ees form part of the CFO Forum
 • CFO metro and secondary city municipali�es
 • Revenue working group
 • Property rates working group
 • Supply chain working group
 • Standing Commi�ee on Professional Prac�ces

(SCKS – Working groups) 
CFO Forum: General / Revenue / Valuations 
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1. MEMBERS
CHAIRPERSON   Krish Kumar   CFO Forum (Past President)
    Peet du Plessis  Revenue working group   
       (President)
    Cheryl Reddy  Vice President: Technical - Supply  
       Chain working group 
    Sidwell Mofokeng Vice President: General
    Louise Muller  Property Ra�ng Forum

MEMBERS   Chief Financial Officers and Por�olio Councillors of   
    Metros:
    eThekwini Metro
    City of Johannesburg Metro
    City of Cape Town Metro
    City of Tshwane Metro 
    Ekurhuleni Metro
    Nelson Mandela Metro
    Mangaung Municipality
    The Msunduzi Municipality
    Buffalo City Municipality 
    and CFO’s from all secondary ci�es

BOARD MEMBERS  Jane Masite (Ms)
    Bharthie Ranchoddas (Ms)
    Fathima Khan (Ms)
    -Annalene Marais (Ms) - Sol Plaatjie Municipality

Regional CIGFARO members Ngcelwane, J (EC)
    Marumo, T (FS)
    Sheik, A (GP)
    Ngcobo, E (KZN)
    Makhongela, M (LP)
    Lengwate, T (MP)
    Jansen, A (NW)
    Wagner, JJ (NC)
    Brown, B (WC)

OTHER Representa�ves Accoun�ng Standards Board    CoGTA
    SALGA       SA CITIES Network
    Na�onal Treasury – OAG    Provincial Treasuries
    NERSA           SA Property Valuers
    FFC       SARS
 

SECRETARIAT:
CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER  Ira Kotze (Ms)



STANDING COMMITTEE ON KNOWLEDGE AND DEVELOPMENT (SCKD) 
sub-committee

CIGFARO ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 PAGE 38

2. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

The du�es and responsibility of the commi�ee are to:
 a) Par�cipate in all ini�a�ves and programmes of the Na�onal and Provincial Treasury, the   
  Accoun�ng Standards Board and the Office of the Auditor-General on any ma�ers affec�ng  
  public finance proac�vely and when so requested. 
 b) Promote technical comments and fulfil the foregoing role in a meaningful manner and keep  
  abreast of professional developments locally and abroad 
  • Public Finance Accoun�ng (GRAP, mSCOA , SCOA)
  • Revenue enhancement
  • Supply chain management
  • Legisla�on that impacts the financial management of local and/or provincial and   
   na�onal government spheres.
 c) Promote programmes that contribute to the improvement of the above outcomes in   
  government.
 d) Provide advice and guidance to members of the Ins�tute, Municipal Managers and Chief  
  Financial Officers on the applica�on of prescribed accoun�ng standards and accoun�ng best  
  prac�ces.
 e) Contribute to legisla�ve efforts that seek to strengthen the accoun�ng profession by   
  providing input in the compila�on of the MFMA & PFMA, as amended and all related   
  legisla�on. Keep members informed and up to date with changes as required by Na�onal  
  Treasury.
 f) Promote programmes that contribute to enhancing the effec�veness of the Finance and   
  Accoun�ng Management prac�ces in Public Finance.
 g) Consider any ma�er referred to the commi�ee by members and the Board of the Ins�tute.
 h) Compile an opera�ng budget based on the annual plan of ac�on to meet the needs of the  
  Standing Commi�ee.
 i) Liaise with SCET, SCAR, and SCOR on norms, standards, curriculum, assessment, FAQS and  
  best prac�ses guidelines. 

3. MEETINGS:

The Forum met and /or a�ended workshops on the following dates:

2 August 2019  CFO Forum: Revenue and Valua�ons.
5 March 2020  Municipal Fiscal Powers and Func�ons Act – amendments regarding Development  
   Levies (Mee�ng with NT).
 
Standing Commi�ee members a�ended the Public Sector Commi�ee mee�ng’s Technical Forum, hosted by 
the Accoun�ng Standards Board, once a month. Discussions and informa�on-sharing concerning Public Sector 
Accoun�ng are shared. The topics discussed include the following:

 • IGRAP 18 on the Recogni�on and Derecogni�on of Land is effec�ve for financial years  
  commencing on or a�er 1 April 2019. 
 • GRAP - FAQs issued was discussed: the effect of land invasions and illegal occupa�ons on  
  control and disclosure of sensi�vity analysis (GRAP 25). 
 • Project group to discuss transi�onal provisions for amendments to financial instruments
 • Project on the development of proposed improvements to the Standards of GRAP:
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 - ED 181 - IPSASB Exposure Dra� on Revenue with Performance Obliga�ons
 - ED 180 - Proposed Post - Implementa�on Review of the Standard of GRAP on Heritage Assets
 - ED 179 - IPSASB Exposure Dra� on Public Sector Specific Financial Instruments:    
  Amendments to IPSAS 41, Financial Instruments
 - ED 178 - IPSASB Exposure dra� on Improvements to IPSAS 2019
 - ED 177 - Proposed transi�onal provisions for GRAP 104
 - ED 176 - Proposed Improvements to Standards of GRAP 2019
 - ED 175 - IPSASB consulta�on paper on measurement
 - ED 174 - Proposed Direc�ve on Applica�on of GRAPs by Public En��es
 - ED 173 - IPSASB Exposure Dra� Collec�ve and Individual Services and Emergency Relief
 - ED 172 - Proposed Transi�onal Provisions for CET colleges
 - ED 171 - ASB Consulta�on on work programme 2021 to 2023
 - ED 170 - IPSASB Exposure Dra� on Amendments IPSAS 36 and IPSAS 41
 - ED 169 - Proposed Amendments to GRAP 1
 - ED 168 - Proposed Guideline on Materiality
 - ED 167 - Proposed Revision to Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments
 - ED 166 - Proposed Guideline on Accoun�ng for Landfill Sites
 - ED 165 - Proposed Amendments to IGRAP 1: Applying the Probability Test on Ini�al   
  Recogni�on of Revenue
 - ED 164 - Proposed IGRAP on Accoun�ng for Adjustments to Revenue
 - ASB project: Financial repor�ng environment of small en��es in the public sector – Research:  
  EXPLORING THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENVIRONMENT OF SMALL ENTITIES
 - Discussions on latest disclosure requirements on BBBEE from the d�
 - ASB three-year work programme
 - Review of GRAP 25 Employee Benefits.

Members Reviewed GRAP Guidelines by OAG for comments:
 • GRAP 1 - Presenta�on of Financial Statements
 • GRAP 2 - Cash Flow Statements
 • GRAP 9 - Revenue from Exchange Transac�ons
 • GRAP 11- Construc�on Contracts
 • GRAP 12 - Inventories
 • GRAP 16 - Investment Property
 • GRAP 17 - Property Plant and Equipment
 • GRAP 19 - Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets
 • GRAP 18 - Segment repor�ng
 • GRAP 20 - Related Party Disclosures
 • GRAP 21 - Impairment of Non-cash-genera�ng Assets
 • GRAP 23 - Revenue from Non-Exchange Transac�ons (Taxes and Transfers)
 • GRAP 24 - Presenta�on of budget informa�on
 • GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits
 • GRAP 26 - Impairment of Cash-genera�ng assets
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4. OTHER MEETINGS ATTENDED BY FORUM MEMBERS 
The Standing Commi�ee members and other Board Members also officially represent SALGA on several com-
mi�ees concerned with local government:
 • MASP Stakeholder Engagement Breakfast on 12 July 2019 at Sunnyside Park Hotel in Parktown;
 • Monthly and quarterly CoGTA CFO Forum mee�ngs;
 • SAICA; 
 • SAICA discussed at the Accoun�ng Forum: covering September 2019;
 • Public Audit Amendment Act Seminar; and 
 • GRAP update and PFM compliance update seminar.

Members also a�end the Public Sector Audit Commi�ee Forum – Hosted by the Ins�tute of Directors (IOD).

The working commi�ee discussed the following items during the year:
 • A dra� guideline on Informa�on Technology Governance;
 • The role of the Public Sector Audit Commi�ee in rela�on to combined assurance; 
 • Public Sector Audit Commi�ee role in overseeing internal audit/Evalua�on of the internal  
  audit func�on (P4); 
 • Challenges facing public sector audit commi�ees; 
 • The rela�onship between the public sector audit commi�ee and management; 
 • Overseeing and evalua�ng an internal audit func�on’s effec�veness:
  - Informa�on communica�on technology governance: A prac�cal guide for Audit  
   Commi�ees 
  -   The Rela�onship between Audit Commi�ees and Governing Bodies 
  - PSACF work plan for 2019 
  - Status update from PSACF Steerco J Dixon
  - PSACF roundtable event 
  - The role of Public Sector Audit Commi�ees in rela�on to Combined Assurance.
The PSACF Round table event 2019 covered the following topics:
 - Empower your Public Sector Audit Commi�ee
  - Keynote address by Deputy Auditor-General, Tsakani Ratsela: The Auditor-General  
   South Africa's audit commi�ee findings and the amendments to the Public Audit Act  
   (Act No. 25 of 2004) 
 - Presenta�on by the Ins�tute of Internal Auditors South Africa: The Public Sector Internal   
  Audit landscape in South Africa and its impact on audit commi�ees; 
 - Panel discussion: Current challenges faced by public sector audit commi�ees; 
 - Final dra� discussion on paper: Overseeing and evalua�ng an internal;
 - audit func�on’s effec�veness;
 - Discussion on paper: Challenges faced by Public Sector Audit Commi�ees;
 - Guidance note on the implementa�on of NT circulars regarding remunera�on of public   
  servants serving on public sector audit commi�ees; 
 - Work plan for 2020.
 - The mSCOA - NT Standard Chart of Accounts, Benchmarking and Budget Reforms, Specimen  
  Financial statements. - MSCOA specimen annual financial statements - dra� for comments -  
  30 April 2019 and the use of the funding segment for cash flow reconcilia�on including   
  MSCOA circulars
 - CIGFARO is also a member of the NT/COGTA  Steering Commi�ee on Revenue
 - CIGFARO is represented at IRBA and the Public Sector Working group on Audit Commi�ee  
  Members.
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5. DISCUSSIONS AT FORUM MEETING - 2 AUGUST 2019 (RHODESFIELD –CIGFARO ) CFO FORUM 
(BUDGETING / SCM / REVENUE / GENERAL)
 Main topics discussed:
  • Public Works Rates Tariffs;
  • 2019/20 increases and affordability issues/increases in rates debt and methods to  
   recover this debt;
  • Challenges and discussion on how these can be overcome when implemen�ng MPRA  
   sec�on 8 Property Categories;
  • Narrow dra�ing of exemp�ons, rebates and reduc�ons;
  • Appeal Boards;
  • Blank cheque provided through legisla�on – payment of boards, board commi�ees, 
   inves�ga�on commi�ee appointed by MEC, etc.
  • Performance Management of the Boards;
  • Sharing of processes for MPRA sec�on 52 reviews;
  • Adherence to MPRA sec�on 75;
  • Awarding of costs – how, when, where and how will this be calculated; 
  • The outcome of the eThekwini court case on the PBO ma�er;
  • Mul� Year Price Determina�on (MYPD) Eskom;
  • Dra� amendments to MFMA and related legisla�ons and amendments to circular no  
   68 of MFMA progress; 
  • VAT / SARS-  implica�ons of including any services funding in the rates income;
  • Climate change (Water / droughts) / Air pollu�on;
  • SA Ci�es Network State of City Finances 2018;
  • Audit prepara�on, based on previous audit outcomes;
  • “The Cost Containment Regula�ons and any dra� Policies prepared, the �meframes  
   that metros are following for approval of those policies and any related cost   
   containment ma�ers that are causing concern” so we can assist each other in  
    achieving compliance?;
  • Repor�ng Framework – Accountability – Specimen Financial Statements mSCOA; and
  • SCM - MFMA Circular 68 on Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful  
   Expenditure (UIFW)
 Municipal Valuer / Valua�on issues:
  • 2019/20 increases and affordability issues/increases in rates debt and methods to  
   recover this debt;
  • Challenges and discussion on how these can be overcome when implemen�ng MPRA  
   sec�on 8 Property Categories;
  • Narrow dra�ing of exemp�ons, rebates and reduc�ons;
  • Appeal Boards 
   a)   Blank cheque provided through legisla�on – payment of boards, board commi�ees,  
   inves�ga�on commi�ee appointed by MEC, etc. 
   b)   Performance Management of the Boards
   c)   Sharing of processes for MPRA sec�on 52 reviews
   d)   Adherence to MPRA sec�on 75
  • Awarding of costs – how, when, where and how will this be calculated.
  • The outcome of the eThekwini court case, if the is judgement on the PBO ma�er
  Our court ruling schools
  • Sale in execu�on contract between Sheriff and buyer
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE STANDING COMMITTEE

2. PURPOSE
The role of the Standing Commi�ee on Professional Conduct and Quality Assurance is to support the Board 
regarding development and monitoring of capacity building programmes in all professional discipline ma�ers 
outlined in the CIGFARO Memorandum of Incorpora�on and advise the Board on ma�ers of educa�on and 
training.
To provide advice and guidance to prac��oners on the applica�on of prescribed public and municipal legisla-
�on, accoun�ng standards, audi�ng standards risk and performance management best prac�ces in general. 

3. MEMBERSHIP
 3.1. The Commi�ee shall consist of non-execu�ve directors, as recommended by the Presidency.
 3.2.  Members will be proposed by the Remunera�on and Nomina�on Commi�ee and approved  
  by the Board. Membership shall be reviewed annually based on the performance of the   
  commi�ee circumstances dictate
 3.3. Mee�ngs of the commi�ee shall be chaired by the Chairperson and in the absence of the  
  Chairperson, the Deputy Chairperson shall chair the mee�ng.
 3.4 The Chairperson of the Commi�ee will always be represented by the Ins�tute’s President.

4. DUTIESAND RESPONSIBILITIES
The commi�ee shall recommend the following to the board:
 4.1 To register special designa�ons for Finance and related professional with SAQA and Na�onal  
  Treasury;
 4.2 To liaise with SCKD on norms, standards, curriculum, assessment, QA and best    
  prac�ces guidelines;
 4.3 To review and maintain the policy on Con�nuous Professional Development for municipal  
  finance officers and related professions;
 4.4 To liaise with educa�onal ins�tu�ons and other ins�tu�ons in collabora�on    
  with SCPCQA;
 4.5 To develop a standards and requirements framework for the different levels of membership  
  and align them with relevant legisla�on;
 4.6 To consider and deal with all ma�ers affec�ng the professional integrity of Ins�tute members;
 4.7 Administer all disciplinary ma�ers affec�ng members in terms of the Ins�tute’s disciplinary  
  code where delegated by the board;
 4.8 To ensure that the Ins�tute renders an efficient service to its members i.e. informa�on on  
  developments in the Ins�tute;
 4.9 To ensure that CIGFARO as a professional body benefits its members

1. Members

CHAIRPERSON  Peet Du Plessis (Mr)

BOARD MEMBERS Emmanuel Ngcobo (Mr) – Chair of Chairs Forum
   Bharthie Ranchoddas (Ms) – Membership Forum
   VACANT – PFM Forum
   Jackson Ngcelwane (Mr)
   Bradley Brown (Mr)
   Thuso Marumo (Mr)
   Annalene Marais (Ms)
SECRETARY  Lindi Nolte (Ms)

STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE 
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 4.10 To assist with the coordina�on of mentor and assessor programmes, including the   
  maintenance of a database of assessors and moderators in the public sector finance and   
  related professions;
 4.11 To provide guidance to members and students;
 4.12 To development strategy on the recruitment of new members and reten�on of exis�ng   
  members;
 4.13 Ensure con�nuous maintenance and upda�ng of the membership database;
 4.14 To compile an opera�ng budget related to the needs of the Commi�ee annually;
 4.15 To consider any ma�ers referred to the Commi�ee by the Board;
 4.16 To develop an opera�onal framework for all branches;
 4.17 To monitor and assist in the co-ordina�on of all branch ac�vi�es;
 4.18 To iden�fy and obtain solu�ons for problems affec�ng branches..

5. OTHER MATTERS
The commi�ee shall:
 5.1 Give due considera�on to laws and regula�ons, the provisions of the Companies Act and  
  CIGFARO’s Memorandum of Incorpora�on; 
 5.2 Arrange for periodic reviews of its own performance and at least annually, review its Terms of  
  Reference to ensure it is opera�ng at maximum effec�veness and recommend any changes it  
  considers necessary to the board for approval; and
 5.3 Perform any other func�on that may be delegated to it by the Board or requested by the  
  President.

6. MEMBERSHIP
6.1 Vision for the future
 • Mandatory professional registra�on for CFOs, CAEs and CROs;
 • Finalise the professionalism for membership designa�ons and migra�on to new    
  designa�ons;
 • Promo�on of the interests of Profession for Finance, Risk, Audit and Performance   
  Managers;
 • Professionalising finance management for greater impact on service quality delivery;
 • Con�nue to canvass members by visi�ng Universi�es, Na�onal and Provincial    
  Departments and Municipali�es;
 • Increase membership number with 5% by recrui�ng new members; and
 • Con�nuous development of members.

6.2 Membership marke�ng
Membership was marketed by means of the following:
 • All branch ac�vi�es held during the year;
 • The CIGFARO Annual Conference 2019 held at Durban ICC, Kwa-Zulu Natal;
 • The CIGFARO Journal and Newsle�er; and
 • CIGFARO Website.

STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE 
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6.3 Membership Sta�s�cs
2018/2019 total members: 2481
2019/2020 total members: 1251
Membership gains
Elevated to Honorary Life Members  0
Elevated to Fellows    2
Admi�ed as Chartered members  47
Admi�ed as Professional members  67
Admi�ed as Technician members  38
Admi�ed as Registered members  30
Admi�ed as Students    3
Admi�ed as Affiliate    11

Members Loss  30
Deceased               5              
Resigned               48
Suspended             1375                       

6.4 Implemen�ng organisa�onal values
Organisa�onal values are a lever for change, as they underpin the culture needed to enable organisa�ons to 
achieve key goals. Members can play a pivotal role by demonstra�ng these values:

• CIGFARO members were given the opportunity to submit ar�cles for the journal and we s�ll   
 encourage them to do so;
• Members have to abide by Code of Ethics and Conduct;
• CIGFARO will not tolerate nor accommodate, nor be reasonable toward unethical conduct or   
 behaviour or any unethical prac�ces by its members, either in elected or appointed capacity;
• Members have the opportunity to submit skills gap training for inclusion in the CIGFARO training  
 schedule; and
• Municipali�es have an opportunity to adver�se vacancy posts on our website for free.

CIGFARO members have an opportunity to exchange ideas, knowledge, best prac�ces for service excellence 
and maximum financial performance.

REMINDER:  Members are reminded to update their details by means of the 
following:
Internet interface
 Go on CIGFARO’s website www.cigfaro.co.za, 
 Click on Membership tab
 Membership login. (Members will be required to type in their email address and ID number to log in).  
 Update the details and click submit. When upda�ng membership, members need to submit (scan and  
 email, fax or post) a cer�fied copy of that qualifica�on otherwise it will not be updated without   
 proof.
 Comple�ng the form in the journal and forward it to the office.  Send your new details to   
  membership@cigfaro.co.za.
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7. BRANCHES
MEMBERS:
Chairperson   Emmanuel Ngcobo  Chairperson: KwaZulu-Natal Branch 
   Jackson Ngcelwane  Chairperson: Eastern Cape Branch
   Thuso Marumo   Chairperson: Free State Branch
   Asma Sheik (Ms)  Chairperson: Gauteng Branch
   Maria Makongela (Ms) Chairperson: Limpopo Branch    
   Thandiwe Lengwate  Chairperson: Mpumalanga
   Oubaas Wagner  Chairperson: Northern Cape Branch 
   A�e Jansen    Chairperson: North West Branch
   Bradley Brown   Chairperson: Western Cape Branch 

7.1 BRANCH ACTIVITIES

Eastern Cape Province
The branch hosted the following training workshops for capacity building:

Free State Province
The branch hosted the following training workshops for capacity building:

Gauteng Province
The branch hosted the following training workshops for capacity building:

Kwa-Zulu Natal Province
The branch hosted the following training workshops for capacity building:

STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE 
(SCPCQA)

12 March 2020 ASB GRAP Standards Update 

23-24 May 2019 GRAP/AFS Seminar (SALGA) 

24 June 2019 GRAP/AFS Seminar 
28 February 2020 Breakfast 

25-26 April 2019 Intern Summit 
2-3 May 2019 SCM Seminar 
15 May 2019 Revenue Solu�ons Seminar 
14 June 2019 AFS Seminar 
27-28 June 2019 Internal Audit Summit 
5-6 July 2019 Finance Leaders’ Summit 
18-19 July 2019 Asset Management Year-End (AFS) Training 
28-29 November 
2019 Revenue Summit 
5-6 December 2019 Internal Audit Summit 
31 January 2020 SCM & Procurement Seminar 
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Limpopo Province
The branch hosted the following training workshops for capacity building:

 Mpumalanga Province
The branch hosted the following training workshops for capacity building:

North West Province
The branch hosted the following training workshops for capacity building:

Western Cape Province
The branch hosted the following training workshops for capacity building:

7.2 MARKETING AND PUBLICATION
Branches have played a role in assis�ng with the publica�on of the journal. It is indeed evident from the infor-
ma�ve ar�cles in our journal that branches contributed to a great extent.

8. PROFESSIONALISATION OF THE PUBLIC SECTOR
8.1 Recogni�on as Professional Body
 The Ins�tute is a recognised Professional Body with the South African Qualifica�on Authority   
 (SAQA) (NQF Act 67 of 2008) from 26 October 2017 to 25 October 2022. CIGFARO has the   
 following designa�ons registered on the Na�onal Qualifica�ons Framework (NQF) overseen   
 by SAQA:
 • Chartered
 • Professional
 • Technician
 • Registered
These designa�ons are awarded once a person has obtained underlying minimum academic qualifica�ons as 
well as relevant experience.

 Northern Cape Province
The branch hosted the following training workshops for capacity building:

STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE 
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29-30 April 2019 Revenue Master Class 
29-30 July 2019 IT Audit and AOPO Workshop  
11-12 March 2020 SCM Workshop 

17 July 2019 Asset Seminar 

21 February 2020 ASB GRAP Standards Update 

22-23 July 2019 Informal Economy Affec�ng Revenue  

  17 May 2019 Revenue Breakfast 
3-4 June 2019 Annual Seminar and AGM 
20 June 2019 Mubesko Training 
19 February 2020 ASB GRAP Standards Update 
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9. CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (CPD)

Con�nued Professional Development is an interna�onally accepted prac�ce for professional bodies. CIGFARO 
has a policy on Con�nuous Professional Development (CPD) which aims to ensure that its members’ skills and 
knowledge are relevant to the changing environment where they func�on. CPD is an important aspect of serv-
ing the public interest and fosters values of con�nuous learning and greater professional competence to be�er 
meet the public, client and employer needs.

The policy is applicable to ac�ve members registered as Fellows, Chartered, Professional, Technician and 
Registered members of the Ins�tute.  The policy is not applicable to re�red members of the Ins�tute.

Members are required to complete credits as per table below, of relevant CPD ac�vity in a three-year rolling 
period.

STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE 
(SCPCQA)

 Membership Level Credits per 

3-year Cycle 

Minimum 

Credits per 

year 

Voluntary Credits to be 

earned per year 

Senior Associate 75 25 5 credits towards ethics 

Associate 75 25 5 credits towards ethics 

Licen�ate 75 25 5 credits towards ethics 

Junior 45 15 5 credits towards ethics 
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1. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
The du�es and responsibili�es of the members of the Commi�ee set out in this Charter are in addi�on to 
those du�es and responsibili�es that they have as members of the Board. The delibera�ons of the Commi�ee 
do not reduce the individual and collec�ve responsibili�es of Board members regarding their fiduciary du�es 
and responsibili�es and they must con�nue to exercise due care and judgment in accordance with their legal 
obliga�ons. 

2. COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE 
 2.1 The Commi�ee must comprise (as contemplated in terms of sec�on 72 of the Act as read with  
  Regula�on 43) not less than three board members, at least one of whom must be   
   independent and must not have been involved in the opera�ons of the Ins�tute within the  
  previous three financial years. 
 2.2  The Commi�ee shall be appointed by the Board in accordance with sec�on 72(1) of the   
  Companies Act. Commi�ee Members must be CIGFARO members in good standing and can  
  be either Associate or General CIGFARO members. 
 2.3  The members of the Commi�ee must collec�vely have sufficient skills to fulfil their du�es.  
  The skills set can be complimented by advisors from professional bodies. Advisors need not  
  be members of CIGFARO and will not formally be part of the Commi�ee or Board of CIGFARO.  
  Advisors have no decision-making powers.
 2.4  The Commi�ee shall be chaired by a non-execu�ve Board Member, who is not the   
  Chairperson of the Board (President of the Ins�tute). The Board shall elect the Commi�ee  
  Chairperson from its members. 
 2.5  The Chairperson, or another designated member of the Commi�ee, shall account to the   
  Board at board mee�ngs.
 2.6  The Commi�ee members shall be required to keep up to date with developments affec�ng  
  the purpose of the Commi�ee and the requisite skills to achieve this. Commi�ee Members  
  should endeavour to a�end one ethics training session or workshop per annum.

3.   ROLE OF THE SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
 3.1  The Commi�ee shall have an independent role as contemplated in terms of the Act and the  
  Regula�ons, with accountability to the Board. 
 3.2  The Commi�ee does not assume the func�ons of management, which remains the   
  responsibility of the CEO and other members of senior management. 
 3.3  The role of the Commi�ee shall be to assist the Board with the oversight on social and ethical  
  ma�ers rela�ng to the Ins�tute.

Social & Ethics Committee (SEC)

1. MEMBERS
Chairperson    Cheryl Reddy (Ms) 
    Bharthie Ranchoddas (Ms)
    Nosipho Dladla (Ms)
    Maria Makhongela (Ms)
Secretariat:
Chief Execu�ve Officer Abbey Tlaletsi
Chief Finance Officer   Ira Kotze (Ms)
Company Secretary   Nonhlanhla Shongwe (Ms)
Training Specialist  Seba Ngwana (Ms)
Admin Assistant  Lydia Makopo (Ms)
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4. SPECIFIC FUNCTIONS REGARDING TRANSFORMATION 
 4.1  The Commi�ee is to assist the Ins�tute to discharge its business responsibility with respect to  
  the implementa�on of transforma�on prac�ces that are consistent with good corporate   
  governance and relevant legisla�on. 
 4.2  The Commi�ee's scope of focus will be guided by the following: 
 4.2.1 Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment (B-BBEE) requirements as described in the   
  Department of Trade and Industry’s Codes of Good Prac�ce as published in the Government  
  Gaze�e in February 2007, as amended or replaced from �me to �me; 
 4.2.2 Transforma�on legisla�on as set out in the Employment Equity and Skills Development Acts  
  and any amended or replacement, re-enacted addi�onal legisla�on in respect thereof; 
 4.2.3 Any other legisla�on which may from �me to �me be applicable to the transforma�on  
  prac�ces of the Ins�tute or the fulfilment by the Commi�ee of its role in terms hereof; 
 4.2.4 The Ins�tute’s transforma�on commitments and requirements.
 4.3 The Commi�ee is responsible for performing all the func�ons necessary to fulfil its   
  responsibili�es in respect of transforma�on, including the following: 
 4.3.1  to review and monitor the Ins�tute's progress towards the achievement of the desired   
  Employment Equity, Skills Development and B-BBEE scorecard targets and transforma�on  
  objec�ves; 
 4.3.2  to review and monitor the Ins�tute's management of transforma�on and B-BBEE principles in  
  a manner that ensures sustainability of the business and the good reputa�on of the Ins�tute; 
 4.3.3  to review and monitor the goals and plans of the Ins�tute regarding transforma�on.

5. SPECIFIC FUNCTIONS REGARDING SUSTAINABILITY 
The Commi�ee is to assist the Board with its sustainability responsibili�es by: 
 5.1  Recommending relevant policies for approval; 
 5.2  Monitoring the implementa�on of the policies;
 5.3  Reviewing reports covering all substan�ve ma�ers rela�ng to sustainability issues; 
 5.4  Considering the repor�ng of sustainable development issues; and 
 5.5  Considering all material and relevant issues that have a significant impact on the members  
  and stakeholders. 

6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
 The Commi�ee shall perform all the func�ons as are necessary to fulfil its roles as stated in paragraphs 6-8 
above, including the following statutory du�es as outlined in Regula�on 43 of the Companies   
Regula�ons, 2011: 
 6.1. Monitoring the Ins�tute’s ac�vi�es, having regard to any relevant legisla�on, other legal   
  requirements or prevailing codes of best prac�ce, regarding ma�ers rela�ng to: 
 6.1.1 social and economic development, including the Ins�tute’s standing in terms of the   
  goals and purposes of: 
  6.1.1.1  the 10 principles set out in the United Global Compact Principles; 
  6.1.1.2  the Organisa�on for Economic Co-opera�on and Development    
    recommenda�ons regarding corrup�on; 
  6.1.1.3  the Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998, as amended; and 

Social & Ethics Committee (SEC)



CIGFARO ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 PAGE 52

  6.1.1.4  the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act 53 of 2003, as amended; 
 6.1.2 good corporate ci�zenship, including the Ins�tute’s: 
  6.1.2.1  promo�on of equality, preven�on of unfair discrimina�on and reduc�on of  
    corrup�on;
  6.1.2.2  contribu�on to development of the communi�es in which its ac�vi�es are  
    predominantly conducted or within which its products or services are   
    predominantly marketed; and 
  6.1.2.3   record of sponsorship, dona�ons and charitable giving; 
 6.1.3  the environment, health and public safety, including the impact of CIGFARO’s ac�vi�es and of  
  its products and services;
 6.1.4 Member rela�onships, including the Ins�tute’s adver�sing, public rela�ons and compliance  
  with applicable laws; and 
 6.1.5 labour and employment, including:
  6.1.5.1  the Ins�tute’s standing in terms of the Interna�onal Labour Organisa�on   
    Protocol on decent work and working condi�ons; and 
  6.1.5.2  the Ins�tute’s employment rela�onships and its contribu�on towards the   
    educa�onal development of its employees; 
 6.2  drawing ma�ers within its mandate to the a�en�on of the Board as required; and 
 6.3  repor�ng, through the Commi�ee Chairman or one of its other members, to the Board at its  
  mee�ngs and at the Ins�tute’s annual general mee�ng, on the ma�ers within its mandate. 
 6.4  In addi�on, the Commi�ee shall perform any addi�onal du�es, delegated by the Board   
  rela�ng to social and ethical ma�ers.

7. AUTHORITY 
 7.1  The Commi�ee acts in accordance with the delegated authority of the Board, as recorded in  
  this Charter. 
 7.2  The Commi�ee shall have the power to inves�gate any ac�vity within the scope of its terms  
  of reference. 
 7.3  The Commi�ee may consult with or receive advice from any person, subject to any Board  
  approved process being followed. 
 7.4  The Commi�ee, in the performance and fulfilment of its du�es, is en�tled in terms of sec�on  
  72(8) of the Act to: 
  74.1  require from any member of the Ins�tute any informa�on or explana�on necessary for  
   the performance of the commi�ee's func�ons; 
  7.4.2  request from any employee of the Ins�tute any informa�on or explana�on necessary  
   for the performance of the commi�ee's func�ons; 
  7.4.3  a�end any CIGFARO mee�ngs they are invited to; 
  7.4.4 receive all no�ces of and other communica�ons rela�ng to Board mee�ngs which  
   impacts on their mandate; and 
  7.4.5  be heard at mee�ngs which discuss the issues concerning the commi�ee's func�ons.
 7.5  The Ins�tute is obliged, in terms of sec�on 72(9) of the Act, to pay all the expenses   
  reasonably incurred by the Commi�ee. 
 7.6  The Commi�ee shall have reasonable access to the Board, the chairpersons of any other   
  Board Commi�ees and the Ins�tute’s records, facili�es and employees necessary to discharge  
  its du�es and responsibili�es, subject to Board approved process. For the avoidance of any  
  doubt, in the event of any conflict between this paragraph and sec�on 72(8) of the Act, the  
  provisions of the Act shall prevail. 
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8. REVIEWS
 8.1  The Commi�ee shall perform a self-evalua�on of its effec�veness every year and report the  
  results to the Board. 
 8.2  The Commi�ee shall review its Charter from �me to �me and recommend any amendments  
  arising to the Board for approval. 

9. THE COMMITTEE HAS DEALT AND FINALISED THE FOLLOWING MATTERS:
 9.1  Report on Health and Safety ma�ers 
  The municipality has performed an evalua�on on the building then issued the Occupa�on  
  Cer�ficate. 
 9.2. Compliant checklist
  9.2.1 A compliant checklist was developed and used whenever authori�es visit the   
   Ins�tute to check compliance.
  9.2.2 Staff a�ended basic defence training.
  9.2.3 Commi�ee Evalua�on Criteria – Ques�onnaire 
   The evalua�on criteria was dra�ed from the Commi�ee Charter.

10. THE COMMITTEE PLANS TO DEAL AND FINALISED THE FOLLOWING MATTERS IN THE FUTURE:
10.1 B-BBEE – how to implement it with Supply Chain 
10.2 Skills development within workplans for Board members
10.3 The dra� evalua�on criteria to be finalised and approved by the commi�ee. 
10.4 Corporate Social Investment Project

Social & Ethics Committee (SEC)
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1. MEMBERS
Chairperson  Ms. Annalene Marais
  Ms. Maria Makhongela
  Mr. Thuso Marumo

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 
March 2020.

Audit commi�ee responsibili�es
The Audit Commi�ee is pleased to report that it has complied with its 
responsibili�es in accordance with the Companies Act. The Commit-
tee has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit 
Commi�ee Charter, is regula�ng its affairs in compliance with the 
charter and will discharge all its responsibili�es accordingly.

The current commi�ee has been in place since 8 October 2018. 

2. OVERSIGHT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE ON THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
PERIOD 1 APRIL 2019 TO 31 MARCH 2020

The Audit Commi�ee provided oversight for the annual audit process and external audit programme and 
engagement le�er. The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic severely disrupted the way business is done in 
South Africa. The Ins�tute was not le� unaffected and had to adapt to the changed circumstances by convert-
ing physical events and conferences to virtual pla�orms. The extent of the financial impact that this has had 
on the opera�ons of the Ins�tute will, however, only be seen in the 2020/21 annual financial statements. 
Despite the disrup�on caused by COVID 19, the Ins�tute managed to complete the 2019/20 financial state-
ments and audit process successfully and without delay.

To complete the evalua�on of annual financial statements, the Audit Commi�ee:

 •  reviewed and discussed the dra� annual financial statements with the CFO;
 •  reviewed the final annual financial statements to be included in the annual report with the  
  independent auditor and management;
 •  reviewed the independent auditor’s management report and management’s responses;
 •  reviewed any changes in accoun�ng policies and prac�ces;
 •  reviewed the en��es’ compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
 •  reviewed any significant adjustments resul�ng from the audit.

The Commi�ee and other members, who assisted the Commi�ee, concurs with and accepts the independent 
auditor’s report on the annual financial statements and advises that the audited annual financial statements 
should be accepted and read together with the report of the independent auditor.

A special word of gra�tude to the CFO and her team, who completed the financial statements for submission 
to the external auditors �meously and has managed to sustain the clean audit for 2019/20.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE (ARC)
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The directors are required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008, to maintain adequate accoun�ng records and 
are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial 
informa�on included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements 
fairly present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and the results of its oper-
a�ons and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng 
Standard for Small and Medium sized En��es. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 
opinion on the annual financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards for 
SME's and are based upon appropriate accoun�ng policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and es�mates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ul�mately responsible for the system of internal financial control 
established by the CIGFARO and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control 
environment. To enable the directors to meet these responsibili�es, the board sets standards for internal 
control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effec�ve manner. The standards include the 
proper delega�on of responsibili�es within a clearly defined framework, effec�ve accoun�ng procedures 
and adequate segrega�on of du�es to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored 
throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in 
ensuring the company’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above 
reproach. The focus of risk management in the company is on iden�fying, assessing, managing and 
monitoring all known forms of risk across the company. While opera�ng risk cannot be fully eliminated, the 
company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and 
ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the informa�on and explana�ons given by management, that the 
system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the 
prepara�on of the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can 
provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2021 and, in the light 
of this review and the current financial posi�on, They are sa�sfied that the company has or has access to 
adequate resources to con�nue in opera�onal existence for the foreseeable future.
Except for the directors as listed in the directors report, their are Regional Branch Chairpersons that have 
representa�on on the Board and assist the Board with achieving the Ins�tutes Missions and Visions.

The external auditors are responsible for independently audi�ng and repor�ng on the company's annual 
financial statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the company's external 
auditors and their report is presented.
The annual financial statements set out on page 67-79, which have been prepared on the going concern 
basis, were approved by the board on 15 September 2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors By:

       

Du Plessis PJA       Marais A
President       Chairperson: Audit and Risk Commi�ee
Tuesday, 15 September 2020

Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
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Directors' Report

The directors have pleasure in submi�ng their report on the annual financial statements of Chartered 
Ins�tute of Government Finance Audit and Risk Officers Non Profit Company and its associates for the 
year ended 31 March 2020.

1. Incorpora�on

The CIGFARO was incorporated on 01 August 1929 and obtained its cer�ficate to commence business 
on the same day.
The company is domiciled in South Africa where it is incorporated as a private company   as an NPC 
under the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The address of the registered office is set out on page 1.

2. Review of financial results and ac�vi�es

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Interna�onal Financial 
Repor�ng Standard for Small and Medium sized En��es and the requirements of the Companies Act 
71 of 2008. The accoun�ng policies have been applied consistently compared to the prior year.
Full details of the financial posi�on, results of opera�ons and cash flows of the company are set out in 
these annual financial statements.

3. Going concern

The directors believe that CIGFARO has adequate financial resources to con�nue in opera�on for the 
foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis. The directors have sa�sfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial posi�on 
and that it has access to sufficient cash resources and borrowing facili�es to meet its foreseeable cash 
requirements. The directors are aware of the Covid 19 pandemic that might have material changes 
that may adversely impact the company. The directors are also not aware of any material non compli-
ance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legisla�on which may 
affect CIGFARO.

4. Auditors

At the AGM, the members will be requested to reappoint Rakoma and Associates Incorporated as the 
independent external auditors of the company and to confirm Mr Collins Malunga as the designated 
lead audit partner for the 2021 financial year.

5. Secretary 

The company secretary is Mrs Nonhlanhla Sindile Shongwe.
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6. CIGFARO Regional Branch Chairpersons 

These Chairpersons have representa�on on the Board and assist the Board with achieving the Ins�tutes' 
Mission and Vision.              
Chairperson     Region
Mr. Ngcobo, E     KZN
Mr. Ngcelwane, J    Eastern Cape
Mr. Marumo, T     Free State
Me. Sheik, A      Gauteng
Mr. Makhongela, M    Limpopo
Mr. Lengwate, T    Mpumalanga
Mr. Jansen, A      North West 
Mr. Wagner, JJ     Northern Cape
Mr. Brown, B      Western Cape

7. Events a�er repor�ng period

The outbreak of the COVID 19 pandemic post year end has disrupted the way business is done in South 
Africa. The country’s situa�on is further exacerbated by the sovereign downgrade to sub investment 
grade. The COVID 19 pandemic is considered to be a non adjus�ng event and there is no immediate 
concern around going concern. The Board has established a high level task team that are con�nuously 
assessing and monitoring developments about the disease and at the �me of finalising the Annual Finan-
cial Statements, management is confident that our responses are adequate. A financial es�mate cannot 
be determined reliably as the extent of COVID 19 is unknown. Management has, however, done an analy-
sis with regards to the poten�al long term effect of COVID 19 based on informa�on available at approval 
date. This is outlined below.

Directors' Report

Perspective Potential Implications CIGFARO responses and mitigation 
Our staff  Risk of COVID-19 amongst students/staff 

and the uncertainties of safety on 
campus. 

Health and safety measures put in   place 
as per the applicable guidelines. 

Our offices Employees unable to remain productive 
due to technology failures and exposure 
to cyber risks. 

Availed IT resources to support remote 
working and meetings. 

Our sponsors Risk of key personnel being unavailable 
due to COVID-19. Donors may 
experience difficulties to honour 
commitments due to budget cuts and or 
reduced profits. 

Collaboration with funders and 
stakeholders to identify and manage 
potential risks. Utilisation of IT resources 
to conduct productive engagements. 

Effective communication The members and employees' well-being 
impacted. 

Instituted response and communication 
team to keep all informed and to receive 
feedback. 

Annual Conferences and Seminars Risk that the financial year cannot been 
saved.  

Online programmes implemented. 
Calendar revised and extended.  

 Working capital management Negative impact on business liquidity, for 
example cash ratio. 

Implement investment policy designed to 
mitigate risks with no exposure to equity. 
Close monitoring of cash position. 
Expenditure plans review and 
reprioritisation. 
Operating costs saving: venues, catering, 
travel, and others. 

The Annual Performance report The 2020 APR significantly impacted by 
COVID-19. 

Explore the ways to reinvent and 
reposition the Institute post COVID 19. 
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Directors' Report

7. Events a�er repor�ng period (con�nued)

The directors are not aware of any other material event which occurred a�er the repor�ng date and up to the 
date of this report.

8. Acknowledgements

Thanks and apprecia�on are extended to all of our Regional Branch Chairpersons (9), staff, suppliers and 
customers for their con�nued support of the CIGFARO.

The annual financial statements set out on page 67-79, which have been prepared on the going concern 
basis, were approved by the board on 15 September 2020, and were signed on its behalf by:

Approval of annual financial statements

Du Plessis PJA
President
Tuesday, 15 September 2020 
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Chartered Ins�tute of Government Finance Audit and Risk Officers Non Profit 
Company Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Chartered Ins�tute of Government Finance Audit and Risk 
Officers Non Profit Company (the company) set out on pages 67 to 83, which comprise the statement of 
financial posi�on as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of chang-
es in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi�on of 
Chartered Ins�tute of Government Finance Audit and Risk Officers Non Profit Company as at 31 March 
2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Interna-
�onal Financial Repor�ng Standard for Small and Medium sized En��es and the requirements of the 
Companies Act 71 of 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng. Our responsibili�es 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the financial 
statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the sec�ons 
290 and 291 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Regis-
tered Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ 
Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA 
Codes) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of annual financial state-
ments in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es, as applicable, in accordance 
with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits 
in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sec�ons of the Interna�onal Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the Interna�onal Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants' Interna�onal Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
Interna�onal Independence Standards) respec�vely. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other informa�on

The directors are responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on 
included in the document �tled "Chartered Ins�tute of Government Finance Audit and Risk Officers Non 
Profit Company financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020", which includes the Directors' 
Report as required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008,  the Five year Financial Summary and the Detailed 
Income Statement, which we obtained prior to the date of this report, and the Annual Report, which is 
expected to be made available to us a�er that date. The other informa�on does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express an 
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor's Report

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa-
�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the finan-
cial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstat-
ed. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of the directors for the Annual Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the financial statements in 
accordance with Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standard for Small and Medium sized En��es and 
the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability 
to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accoun�ng unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to 
cease opera�ons, or have no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

Auditor's responsibili�es for the audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

  Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,  
  whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those  
  risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for  
  our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is  
  higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,   
  inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.
 
  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
  audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of  
  expressing an opinion on the effec�veness of the company’s internal control.



  Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of  
  accoun�ng es�mates and related disclosures made by the directors.

  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of  
  accoun�ng and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty  
  exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the company’s  
  ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,  
  we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
  the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.  
  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
  auditor's report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the company to cease  
  to con�nue as a going concern.

  Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements,  
  including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the   
  underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
iden�fy during our audit.

Rakoma and Associates Incorporated
Per: Collins Malunga
Director
Chartered Accountants (SA)
 Registered Auditor 
15 September 2020

Fourways
Ground Floor , Building B, Monte Circle Office Park
178 Monte Casino Boulevard
Fourways
2191
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Independent Auditor's Report
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020

* See Note 2 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

* See Note 2 
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Statement of Changes in Equity

* See Note 2 
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Statement of Cash Flows

* See Note 2 
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Accounting Policies

General informa�on

Chartered Ins�tute of Government Finance Audit and Risk Officers Non Profit Company is a company 
incorporated and domiciled in South Africa as an NPO.

1.    Basis of prepara�on and summary of significant accoun�ng policies

The annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the 
Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standard for Small and Medium sized En��es, and the Companies Act 
71 of 2008. The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and incor-
porate the principal accoun�ng policies set out below. They are presented in South Africa Rand.

These accoun�ng policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in 
note 222 First �me adop�on of the Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standard for Small and Medium 
sized En��es.

1.1   Significant judgements and sources of es�ma�on uncertainty

Cri�cal judgements in applying accoun�ng policies

Management are required to make cri�cal judgements in applying accoun�ng policies from �me to 
�me. The judgements, apart from those involving es�ma�ons, that have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements, are outlined as follows:

Lease classifica�on

The company is party to leasing arrangements. The treatment of leasing transac�ons in the annual 
financial statements is mainly determined by whether the lease is considered to be an opera�ng lease 
or a finance lease. In making this assessment, management considers the substance of the lease, as 
well as the legal form, and makes a judgement about whether substan�ally all of the risks and rewards 
of ownership are transferred.

Key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The company reviews the es�mated useful lives of property, plant and equipment when changing 
circumstances indicate that they may have changed since the most recent repor�ng date. During the 
current year, management determined that there are no changes to the es�mates for the property, 
plant and equipment.

1.2   Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the company holds for its own use or for rental 
to others and which are expected to be used for more than one period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company, and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is ini�ally measured at cost.
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Accounting Policies

1.2   Property, plant and equipment (con�nued)

Cost includes costs incurred ini�ally to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment 
and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is 
recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of 
the replaced part is derecognised.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, addi�ons to or replacements of parts of proper-
ty, plant and equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to day servicing 
costs are included in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated deprecia�on and any 
accumulated impairment losses, except for land which is stated at cost less any accumulated impair-
ment losses.

Deprecia�on of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. 
Deprecia�on is charged to write off the asset's carrying amount over its es�mated useful life to its 
es�mated residual value, using a method that best reflects the pa�ern in which the asset's economic 
benefits are consumed by the company.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item      Deprecia�on method   Average useful life

Buildings     Straight line    2.5% (40 years)
Furniture and fixtures    Straight line    20% (5 years)
Office equipment    Straight line    20% (5 years)
IT equipment     Straight line    33,3% (3 years)

The deprecia�on charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carry-
ing amount of another asset.

When indicators are present that the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and 
equipment have changed since the most recent annual repor�ng date, they are reassessed. Any chang-
es are accounted for prospec�vely as a change in accoun�ng es�mate.

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they 
may be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed 
to be higher than the es�mated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its con�nued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecogni�on 
of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is included in profit or loss when the item is 
derecognised.      
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1.3   Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an iden�fiable non monetary asset without physical substance.

Intangible assets are ini�ally recognised at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated amor�sa�on 
and accumulated impairment losses.

Research and development costs are recognised as an expense in the period incurred.

Amor�sa�on is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, as follows:

Item       Deprecia�on method 

Computer so�ware, internally generated  Straight line   33.3% (3 years)

In cases where management is unable to make a reliable es�mate of the useful life of an intangible 
asset, its best es�mate is applied, limited to 10 years.

The residual value, amor�sa�on period and amor�sa�on method for intangible assets are reassessed 
when there is an indica�on that there is a change from the previous es�mate.

1.4   Financial instruments

Ini�al measurement
 
Financial instruments are ini�ally measured at the transac�on price (including transac�on costs except 
in the ini�al measurement of financial assets and liabili�es that are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss) unless the arrangement cons�tutes, in effect, a financing transac�on in which case it is 
measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a simi-
lar debt instrument.

Financial instruments at amor�sed cost

These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the 
criteria in sec�on 11.8(b) of the standard, are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the effec-
�ve interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current assets or current liabili�es are 
measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the arrange-
ment effec�vely cons�tutes a financing transac�on.

At each repor�ng date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine 
whether there is any objec�ve evidence of impairment. If there is objec�ve evidence, the recoverable 
amount is es�mated and compared with the carrying amount. If the es�mated recoverable amount is 
lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its es�mated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments at fair value

All other financial instruments, including equity instruments that are publicly traded or whose fair value 
can otherwise be measured reliably, without undue cost or effort, are measured at fair value through 
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1.4   Financial instruments (con�nued)

If a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available without undue cost or effort, then the fair value 
at the last date that such a reliable measure was available is treated as the cost of the instrument. The 
instrument is then measured at cost less impairment un�l management are able to measure fair value 
without undue cost or effort.

1.5   Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substan�ally all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are opera�ng leases.

Finance leases – lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabili�es at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased 
property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.

The lease payments are appor�oned between the finance charge and the reduc�on of the outstanding 
liability using the effec�ve interest method.

1.6   Impairment of assets

If there is any such indica�on, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) 
is es�mated and compared with its carrying amount. If the es�mated recoverable amount is lower, the 
carrying amount is reduced to its es�mated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related 
assets) is increased to the revised es�mate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount 
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of 
assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

1.7   Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

The cost of short term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months a�er the service is 
rendered, such as leave pay and sick leave, bonuses,  are recognised in the period in which the service 
is rendered and are not discounted. Staff receive no non monetary benefits such as Medical Care or 
Pension Fund benifits.

1.8   Provisions and con�ngencies

Provisions are recognised when the Ins�tute has an obliga�on at the repor�ng date as a result of a 
past event; it is probable that the Ins�tute will be required to transfer economic benefits in se�le-
ment; and the amount of the obliga�on can be es�mated reliably.

Provisions are not recognised for future opera�ng losses.
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1.9 Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the Ins�tute has transferred the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of goods to the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount 
of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that economic benefits associated with the 
transac�on will flow to the Ins�tute. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considera�on 
received or receivable, excluding sales taxes and discounts.  Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using 
the effec�ve interest rate method.

Membership fees are recognised on cash basis, and all other revenue on accrual basis, based on:                                                                        
When the outcome of a transac�on involving the rendering of services can be es�mated reliably, reve-
nue associated with the transac�on is recognised by reference to the stage of comple�on of the trans-
ac�on at the end of the repor�ng period. The outcome of a transac�on can be es�mated reliably when 
all the following condi�ons are sa�sfied:
  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
  it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transac�on will flow to the  
  company;
  the stage of comple�on of the transac�on at the end of the repor�ng period can be  
  measured reliably; and
  the costs incurred for the transac�on and the costs to complete the transac�on can be  
  measured reliably.

1.10 Provision for Doub�ul Debts

The provision for doub�ul debts is the es�mated amount of bad debt that will arise from accounts 
receivable that have been issued and are collectable as per Revenue, but not yet collected. It is iden�cal 
to the allowance for doub�ul accounts.  The provision is used under accrual basis accoun�ng, so that 
an expense is recognized for probable bad debts as soon as invoices are issued to customer. Thus, the 
net impact of the provision for doub�ul debts is to accelerate the recogni�on of bad debts into earlier 
repor�ng periods.
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* See Note
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* See Note
The supplementary informa�on presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited
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